
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 1, 2013 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners and Department Heads. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i. September 17, 2013 – Regular Board Meeting  
ii. September 23, 2013 – Special Board Meeting 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Determine the sufficiency of protest concerning the annexation of 
certain lands in the general vicinity north of Mandan Middle School 
and Tesoro Refinery, and west of Highway 1806. 

2. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of the SE ¼ in 
Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81 West, Eagle Ridge 1st 
Addition.(First consideration of Ordinance #1169)(See Ordinances 
No. 2). 

3. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of Section 31, 
Township 139N, Range 80 West, Sylvesters Industrial Park  3rd 
Addition Lot 1 Block 1.(First consideration of Ordinance #1170)(See 
Ordinances No. 3). 

4. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of Section 31, 
Township 139N, Range 80 West, Midway 14th Addition Lots 1-3 & 6 
Block 1.(First consideration of Ordinance #1171)(See Ordinances 
No. 4). 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider games of chance for the following: 
i. Bismarck Single File at Mandan Eagles Club from November 

8, 2013 through December 31, 2013. 
ii. Ten Spot Scratch at Ten Spot Lanes from October 7, 2013 

through October 13, 2013. 
2. Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the 

North Dakota Department of Transportation, Traffic Safety Office. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 1, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 
3. Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement 

District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
4. Consider approval of administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies. 
5. Consider proclaiming October, 2013 National Disability 

Employment Month in the City of Mandan.  
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #148. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Consider appointments to the Mandan Youth Commission. 
2. Receive an update of the Bismarck Mandan Metropolitan Planning 

Organization long range transportation plan 
3. Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 
4. Consider approval of a variance for the E 70’ of Lots 1 & 2, Block 

18, Helmsworth Mclean Addition. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Consider Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North 
Dakota Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking 
Water Act. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1169 Zone Change for Eagle 
Ridge 1st Addition – An ordinance to amend and reenact section 
21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District 
Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

3. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1170 Zone Change for 
Sylvesters Industrial Park 3rd Addition Lot 1, Block 1 – An ordinance 
to amend and reenact section 21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

4. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1171 Zone Change for Midway 
14th Addition Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 – An ordinance to amend and 
reenact section 21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

5. Introduction and first consideration of Ordinance No. 1158, An 
Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Section 21-03-10(1)(a) of the 
Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to automobile parking. 

6. Consider Resolution establishing license fees for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. October 15, 2013 
2. November 5, 2013 – 4 p.m. start 
3. November 19, 2013 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 1, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 
M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at Mandan City 
Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of citizens throughout the City. 
Individuals wishing to address the Board are encouraged to make arrangements with the Board 
President or the City Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board 
and not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. The Board 
will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with the City. If a citizen would 
like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must be made in advance with the City 
Administrator or Board President. The Board reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time 
allowed for public participation. The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) 
minutes or less. Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 
Departmental planning meeting will be held the Monday prior to the Commission meeting, all 
Commissioners are invited, noon, former Morton County Library Room. Please notify the city 
administrator by 8:30 a.m. that Monday if you plan on attending. If more than two commissioners 
plan on attending, proper public notice must be given. 

 
 
 
 
 



(Page intentionally left blank) 



 

REVISED AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 1, 2013 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners and Department Heads. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i. September 17, 2013 – Regular Board Meeting  
ii. September 23, 2013 – Special Board Meeting 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Determine the sufficiency of protest concerning the annexation of 
certain lands in the general vicinity north of Mandan Middle School 
and Tesoro Refinery, and west of Highway 1806. 

2. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of the SE ¼ in 
Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81 West, Eagle Ridge 1st 
Addition.(First consideration of Ordinance #1169)(See Ordinances 
No. 2). 

3. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of Section 31, 
Township 139N, Range 80 West, Sylvesters Industrial Park  3rd 
Addition Lot 1 Block 1.(First consideration of Ordinance #1170)(See 
Ordinances No. 3). 

4. Consider approval of a zone change for a part of Section 31, 
Township 139N, Range 80 West, Midway 14th Addition Lots 1-3 & 6 
Block 1.(First consideration of Ordinance #1171)(See Ordinances 
No. 4). 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider games of chance for the following: 
i. Bismarck Single File at Mandan Eagles Club from November 

8, 2013 through December 31, 2013. 
ii. Ten Spot Scratch at Ten Spot Lanes from October 7, 2013 

through October 13, 2013. 
2. Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the 

North Dakota Department of Transportation, Traffic Safety Office. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 1, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 
3. Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement 

District No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 
4. Consider approval of administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies. 
5. Consider proclaiming October, 2013 National Disability 

Employment Month in the City of Mandan.  
6. Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #148 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Consider appointments to the Mandan Youth Commission. 
2. Receive an update of the Bismarck Mandan Metropolitan Planning 

Organization long range transportation plan 
3. Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. 
4. Consider approval of a variance for the E 70’ of Lots 1 & 2, Block 

18, Helmsworth Mclean Addition. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Consider Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North 
Dakota Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking 
Water Act. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1169 Zone Change for Eagle 
Ridge 1st Addition – An ordinance to amend and reenact section 
21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to District 
Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

3. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1170 Zone Change for 
Sylvesters Industrial Park 3rd Addition Lot 1, Block 1 – An ordinance 
to amend and reenact section 21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

4. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1171 Zone Change for Midway 
14th Addition Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 – An ordinance to amend and 
reenact section 21-13-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
relating to District Boundaries and Zoning Map. 

5. Introduction and first consideration of Ordinance No. 1158, An 
Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Section 21-03-10(1)(a) of the 
Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to automobile parking. 

6. Consider Resolution establishing license fees for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages. 

7. Introduction and first consideration of Ordinance No. 1168, An 
Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Portions of Section 12-02-04 
and Section 12-02-06 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating 
to Alcoholic Beverage Licenses. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

October 1, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. October 8, 2013 – 5:30 p.m. – Joint mtg. w/Planning & Zoning 
Commission 

2. October 15, 2013 
3. November 5, 2013 – 4 p.m. start 
4. November 19, 2013 

 
M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at Mandan City 
Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of citizens throughout the City. 
Individuals wishing to address the Board are encouraged to make arrangements with the Board 
President or the City Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board 
and not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. The Board 
will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with the City. If a citizen would 
like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must be made in advance with the City 
Administrator or Board President. The Board reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time 
allowed for public participation. The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) 
minutes or less. Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 1 of 9 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:00 p.m. on September 

17, 2013 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.   

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Frank (arrived at 5:30 p.m.) and 

Braun. Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, City Attorney Brown, 

City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, 

Business Development and Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth, and Engineering Project Manager Fettig. Absent:  Police Chief 

Bullinger, and Assessor/Building Official Lalim. 

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Commissioner Braun motioned to approve the 

Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed.   

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:   

1.      Wayne Papke, a Mandan resident came forward to comment.  He extended an 

appreciation to Greg Welch for the nice job he does with the Budget process from year to 

year.  Papke commented that the expenditure budget this year went up 14% which is a 

substantial increase from $26.638 million to $30.424 million.  He said that is concerning.  

He stated this is a good time to reflect on the tax policy, in particular the tax incentives 

given on a discretionary basis.  That accounted for $800,000 in revenue that was forfeited 

coupled with the YMCA project, of which property taxes could have been reduced 20% 

if not for these items.  He pointed out that those were choices made by the City 

Commission and that’s the effects of it.   

 

2.          DeNae Kautzmann, a Mandan resident came forward and inquired how the 

Commission would like to proceed with special assessment District 148.  She indicated 

that she is appealing the assessments and asked if it should be brought forward now or 

when that item is discussed?  Mayor Van Beek requested she present her request at this 

time.  Ms. Kautzmann stated she is speaking on two notices of appeal of assessments.   

(1)  With regard to her personal property, Parcels 1563, 1563A and 1563B.  She 

stated she is appealing the assessments because she believes the assessment exceeds the 

benefit which is contrary to state law.  She provided an example of her parcel vs. River 

Bend parcels which are equal distance to Mandan Avenue and the River Bend parcels are 

assessed $600 lower than her parcels.  The second point she made was the water line she 

is being assessed for is a secondary waterline and that waterline is of no benefit to Parcels 

1563A and 1563B as there is no primary waterline to back up at this time.  Those parcels 

are undeveloped at this time. The assessment list is incomplete as there are parcels on 2
nd

 

Avenue Northeast that have been missed.  She stated she has inquired, but does not know 

what the resolution was, regarding the steps on Pat Atkinson’s property on Mandan  

Avenue.  Atkinson requested those steps and they only benefit him.  That should not be 

spread throughout the district.  Finally, the Park District should be assessed for the City 

Park within the special assessment district and for the bike trail along Mandan Avenue.  

(2)  The Special Assessment Commission failed to follow Section 40-23-07 

NDCC because it did not levy the assessments to the just proportion of the total cost to be 

paid by special assessments.  Assessments were issued per unit that is not allowable per 

statute or the established case law.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 2 of 9 

(3) 1563B was determined by the City to be buildable.  They never addressed 

1563A.  She stated that the problem is that she is landlocked with the property 

surrounding these lots.  All the rights of way that abut these lots have been vacated.  

There are no streets, water, sewer, or fire protection there.  She provided a history of this 

long-standing problem. Based on the history given, Kautzmann believes the lots are not 

buildable therefore, they should not be assessed.  She mentioned the concerns she 

brought forth at the August 7
th

 and August 14
th

 Special Assessment Commission Public 

Hearing and meetings have not been addressed.  She believes the Special Assessment 

Committee has shirked its responsibilities and they failed to act on the objections raised 

at the public hearing.  Finally, the special assessment list filed with the City affirms that it 

is correct.  That’s found under Section 40-23-11 and 40-23-12.   

 (4)  Kautzmann stated that she has the same concerns regarding property owned 

by Kautzmann Property and Management.    

 

Kautzmann requested the Commission consider the comments provided and the 

objections brought forth regarding her property.  Her recommendation is to remand the 

matters back to the Special Assessment Committee to correct the errors and resubmit the 

corrected versions to the City Commission.   

 

Bernice Thomas, a Mandan resident residing on 3
rd

 Street Northeast, came forward to 

comment.  She stated she does not understand the assessment process for this project.  

Her recommendation is for the Commission to scrap this assessment plan and that they go 

back and refigure it so it is equally shared.   

 

Casey Chapman came forward to report information regarding liquor licenses that he 

obtained after a discussion with Brian Neugebauer, the City Attorney from West Fargo.  

He stated that West Fargo has unlimited licenses.  West Fargo controls liquor licenses by 

zoning.  They zone in certain areas and let the market take care of it.  The fees that are 

charged for licenses are minimal at between $1,000 and $2,000.  The West Fargo 

Commission has taken the position that they are not going to limit the number of liquor 

licenses in the city.  

 

Deborah Holter, a Mandan resident came forward to comment on the special assessment 

for District 148.  She stated she has 4 parcels that are assessed.  She is a member of the 

Special Assessment Committee even though she did not take part in this special 

assessment other than to try to move it forward.  The reason the objections are here is 

largely because when she as a commission member and she as a citizen ask questions, she 

could not get answers.  She concurred with the testimony provided by Ms. Kautzmann in 

that the Special Assessment Committee did not perform its responsibility concerning the 

objection in looking at the assessments in this district to make sure they were equitable.  

She provided information on the actions of the Committee when this matter was 

discussed.    She noted that the objections were not dealt with.   She voiced concern about 

the assessments to her property, in comparison to those residents in River Bend.  She 

indicated that she was concerned she received an assessment increase and did not know 

why.  She stated she also has three lots on 3
rd

 Street and the same things apply to them.  

She indicated that she is being charged for a secondary waterline.  Secondly, there is a 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 3 of 9 

16” waterline that runs down Mandan Avenue and the west side of the street has been 

assessed 70% and the east side of the street has been assessed 30%.  She wanted to know 

why?  She provided a transcript of a proceeding that was held in 2007 concerning this.  

She pointed out discrepancies with the information within the transcript.  She believes the 

west side of Mandan is assessed more than the east side of Mandan and requested the 

City Commission listen to the objections of the citizens in determining assessments 

equally.   

 

Commissioner Tibke clarified that a backup taping of any proceeding is good practice.  

She stated the Commission provides as much transparency as possible to the citizens.  

Holter replied the concern brought forward is that the problem at the meeting has not 

been dealt with.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.          Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

meeting held on September 3, 2013.   Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the minutes 

from the Board of City Commission meeting held on September 3, 2013.  Commissioner 

Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.         Public Hearing scheduled at 6:00 p.m. to review and discuss the Preliminary 

2014 Budget. (See Ordinances and Resolutions #1 and #2).  Mayor Van Beek stated this 

is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against this matter.  

A second announcement was made to come forward.  Hearing none, this portion of the 

public hearing was closed.  Finance Director Welch stated that the Finance Department 

has not received any written or oral comments in objection to the proposed 2014 Budget.  

However, this afternoon he indicated that he did receive and responded to two email 

questions from Wayne Papke.  In response to the public comment that was made this 

evening he replied that at the meeting on August 20
th

 a comprehensive and detailed 

Budget was presented to this Board, to the public and to the media.  Following that 

meeting the City’s preliminary 2014 Budget was posted on the City’s website.  The 

information is available and the Finance Department is transparent with financial 

information.   A summary of the information provided at the August 20
th

 meeting was 

presented by Mr. Welch.   

 

Commissioner Braun extended a thank you to Mr. Welch for his expertise, dedication and 

hard work in preparing the 2014 Budget.   

 

F.         BIDS: 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1,         Consider approval of monthly bills. 

3.         Consider request from Human Resources Department to destroy documents in 

accordance with the records retention schedule. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 4 of 9 

4.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

174, Project No. 2012-16 (Plainview Heights 13th Addition). 

5.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

176, Project No. 2012-20 (Lakewood 6
th

 and 7th Addition). 

6.         Consider approval of the following abatements: (i) Street Appraisal – James 

Wetsch (ii) Street Appraisal – Monte Binstock (iii) Street Appraisal – Theresa Timmerick. 

7.         Consider proclamation designating September 21, 2013 as Nickelodeon 

Worldwide Day of Play in the City of Mandan. Mayor Van Beek read the Proclamation.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the Consent Agenda items No. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 as 

presented.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

Commissioner Tibke requested Consent Agenda Item No. 2 be removed from the Agenda 

for discussion: Consider confirmation of special assessments for Street Improvement 

District #148.  Commissioner Tibke requested City Staff to assist with this item.  She 

inquired how many parcels this affected.  Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 

came forward to provide information.  Hager stated that within the street project there 

were 426 property owners who were assessed.  Commissioner Tibke suggested that 

regarding the two presented objections to this matter, those concerns should be addressed.   

Subsequently, a meeting should be scheduled soon after to review the outcomes of the 

questions asked and then bring back the Special Assessment Committee 

recommendations.  She asked about the timeline involved in this process.  Hager replied 

that October 15
th

 would be the last meeting that there could be any activity or approval on 

this project.  Commissioner Tibke recommended setting a meeting for Friday (9/21/13) to 

discuss the concerns brought up and then there would be time to respond and make a 

decision based on recommendations.  

 

City Attorney Brown stated he did not attend the August 7, 2013 Special Assessment 

Commission Public Hearing.  He attended the meeting of the Special Assessment 

Commission on the morning of August 14
th

 stating that Holter was there, Kautzmann was 

not.  He indicated the only information he has been provided was that in their opinion 

their properties were not benefited by the project and by the assessments.  He stated he 

has been waiting for specific information as to why they thought they were not benefited 

and this is what we have tonight.  Commissioner Tibke recommended City Attorney 

Brown and staff reviews the concerns at a meeting and then provide a response to the 

City Commission at an upcoming meeting.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to table Consent Agenda Item No. 2.   Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.   Commissioner Tibke requested a meeting be scheduled at a time 

agreed upon by those who need to be present and subsequently recommendations will be 

reviewed at the Commission meeting on October 1
st
.   Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 5 of 9 

H.         OLD BUSINESS: 

1.         Discussion regarding liquor licenses.  City Administrator Neubauer stated that at 

the working session several possibilities were discussed with regard to liquor license 

issuance.  He concurred with Mr. Chapman’s earlier information regarding West Fargo 

license process and fees stating that he also had an opportunity to visit with City Attorney 

Neugebauer from West Fargo. He stated that Deputy Chief Leingang has visited with the 

City of Grand Forks and has provided that information in the handouts.  Grand Forks also 

has unlimited number of licenses as West Fargo does.  Grand Forks has an application fee 

and an issuance fee as set by Resolution.   Neubauer explained how Mandan determines 

the number of licenses for the City.  As of September 13, 2013, Mandan has seen an 

increase of 657 water meter units since July 1, 2012.  Neubauer reviewed the various 

ways cities throughout North Dakota have in place stating that they are all a little 

different.  There is one application for a Class A license for consideration at this time.  

Commissioner Tibke inquired of pros and cons for Grand Forks for the unlimited 

licenses.  Neubauer stated they have 78 licenses out and all are being utilized.  Grand 

Forks and Fargo have server training programs in place.  They also do compliance checks 

on the bars to make sure no one under 21 is being served.   

 

Commissioner Frank stated one of the concerns now is the units being under the 500 

number limits.  She noted that previous meeting discussions addressed whether to issue a 

license after the number would hit 500 or if it would be issued at a certain date (June 20
th

 

was a suggestion).  She stated she is thinking the number of units might be a 

consideration.  Administrator Neubauer mentioned that the May 31
st
 date was picked as 

the time to determine if the City has met the 500 living units. Subsequently at the next 

meeting it would be discussed as to whether or not to open up new licenses. If the 

decision was to open up new licenses that would allow for time to advertise that we had 

additional licenses so we could get those additional licenses bed and possibly awarded by 

July 1
st
, which is the annual renewal time.  Commissioner Frank pointed out that there are 

two decisions to be made: (1) To decide on the Class A liquor licenses and what that 

really means; and (2) That consideration is given to having the 500 living units being the 

indicator when to open up, which would allow us at that moment to consider adding 

license as opposed to waiting on a specific date for them to be available.  

 

Commissioner Frank motioned that the Class A on-sale and off-sale beer and liquor 

licenses have a requirement of seating for 30 or greater.  Commissioner Braun seconded 

the motion.  Commissioner Frank commented that the discussion that occurred regarding 

measurements of footage would be difficult thus seating requirement will be more 

manageable considering that the primary focus will be on-sale with off-sale being 

available.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed.   

 

Commissioner Rohr motioned to approve unlimited Class D-1 with the fee to be 

determined.  Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.  Commissioner Tibke questioned 

whether West Fargo has the same classes as Mandan, (Class A, Class D-1, etc.), and are 

they all unlimited?  Neubauer replied “yes” however, they may go by different names. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 6 of 9 

Commissioner Frank indicated that she is unsure if all classes should be given as an 

unlimited status.  Commissioner Braun suggested assigning “Open” and then come up 

with figures for each class.  Administrator Neubauer said an option would be to issue 

unlimited licenses for all classes and then charge an issuance fee for new ones.   He stated 

that if the theory on liquor licenses is to provide a source of revenue, because they do 

have value created by the commission, then a specific amount should be set.  

Commissioner Frank concurred that the source of revenue from license fees is an 

important resource the City has in place.  Commissioner Rohr pointed out that Class B 

and Class C licenses do not have any limits placed on them.  Class E and F also have no 

limits.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion for un-limiting the D-1 licenses and 

setting a fee (to be determined). 

 

Administrator Neubauer stated that the last time two Class D-1 licenses were put out for 

public bid, one generated $40,000 and the other generated $36,000.   Attorney Brown 

offered a point of reference on this matter stating that Grand Forks has a Class 3 on or off 

sale and the issuance fee is $5,320 and the annual fee is $1,670. However, they do not 

allow beer sales in a Convenience Store.   Administrator Neubauer suggested that with 

direction from the Board, an ordinance could be drafted and brought back for First and 

Second readings and then a Resolution would be drafted setting the issuance fees.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to amend the motion to set the fee at $35,000.  Commissioner 

Frank seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: No; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  No; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The Amended motion passed.  Mayor Van Beek returned to vote on the 

Original motion:  to approve unlimited Class D-1 licenses and to add the Amended 

Motion that allows for a $35,000 license fee.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: No; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The Original motion passed.   

 

Commissioner Braun motioned to approve the Class A, Class D, Class D-1 that includes 

the Special B on-sale licenses for unlimited. City Administrator Neubauer suggested the 

motion could be to request City Attorney Brown to draft an Amendment to the Ordinance 

to un-limit the number of establishments per class of license and then if that Amendment 

passes, that will be brought back before the Commission and there could be a 

determination of the issuance fee for each of those. 

 

Commissioner Braun withdrew his motion and entered a new motion to draft an 

Ordinance to remove the limitations on the number of licenses that currently have 

limitations.  Commissioner Frank seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

Commissioner Frank recommended that when drafting the Ordinance the bid amounts 

that were previously used be considered as suggested amounts for the Ordinance.   

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 7 of 9 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider the creation of, approval of the feasibility report for, approve the plans 

and specifications, approve engineer’s report, direct advertisement for bids and approve 

sufficiency of petition for Street Improvement District No. 189, Project No. 2013-30 

(Lakewood 6
th

 Addition Lot 10B Block 2 Replat). (See Resolution No. 3).  Engineering 

Project Manager Fettig stated that the developer is requesting the City to allow special 

assessment costs to the benefiting properties for the development of Oxbow Trail 

Southeast.  There is about 150 ft. of Oxbow Trail.  The location is off 40
th

 and 29
th

.  This 

will gain access into the adjoining property.  The cost of the project is approximately 

$50,367.20, the engineering and administration costs are $17,628.52 bringing the total 

cost to $67,995.72.  There will be approximately 19 lots receiving $3,578.72 in 

assessments. 

 

Commissioner Frank moved to approve the creation of, approval of the feasibility report 

for, approve the plans and specifications, approve engineer’s report, direct advertisement 

for bids and approve sufficiency of petition for Street Improvement District No. 189, 

Project No. 2013-30 (Lakewood 6
th

 Addition Lot 10B Block 2 Replat).  Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

2.         Consider Amendment No. 1 to Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for 

Professional Engineering Services of the Mandan Water Treatment Plant, Phase II 

Optimization Project.  Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director, reviewed with  

members a request to consider an Amendment to an agreement between the owner and 

Engineer for Professional Engineering Services of the Mandan Water Treatment Plan, 

Phase II Optimization Project.  Froseth stated that the City has secured a State revolving 

fund loan to make improvements to the Water Treatment Plant.  The scope of the 

improvements varied and a list of probable costs was provided for review.  The scope has 

changed since the SRF loan application was submitted and approved and as a result of 

problems that came about after the loan was approved.  AE2S anticipates more work will 

be required in the construction phase of this project.  AE2S has completed the plans for 

the project which is currently out for bid with an opening date of October 10, 2013. 

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Engineering Services with Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services for the 

Phase II Optimization Project of the Water Treatment Plant.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Froseth stated that the additional funds required due to the 

amendment can be applied for under the SRF loan application that is in effect.  He also 

stated that this does not affect water quality because this was considered a spring run-off 

needed for the pre-treatment.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

3.        Introduction of new employee, Robert Decker, Principal Planner:  Justin Froseth 

Planning & Engineering Director introduced Robert Decker as the new Principal Planner 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 8 of 9 

effective September 16, 2013.  Mayor Van Beek welcomed Mr. Decker to his new 

position with the City of Mandan.   

 

J.         RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.         Consider the second and final consideration of Ordinance No. 1163 making the 

annual appropriations for expenditures or expenses of the City of Mandan, North  

Dakota, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, 

and making the annual tax levy for the year 2013.  Commissioner Frank moved to 

approve the second and final consideration of Ordinance No. 1163 making the annual 

appropriations for expenditures or expenses of the City of Mandan, North Dakota, for the 

fiscal year commencing January 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, and making the 

annual tax levy for the year 2013.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

2.          Consider Resolution establishing rates and charges for services from the Water 

and Sewer Utility Fund. Commissioner Frank moved to approve the Resolution 

establishing rates and charges for services from the Water and Sewer Utility Fund.  

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

3.        Consider the Resolutions creating district, approving engineer’s report, 

determining sufficiency of protest, approving the plans and specifications and directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 189, Project No. 2013-30 

(Lakewood 6
th

 Addition Lot 10B Block 2 Replat).  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve 

the Resolutions creating district, approving engineer’s report, determining sufficiency of 

protest, approving the plans and specifications and directing advertisement for bids for 

Street Improvement District No. 189, Project No. 2013-30 (Lakewood 6
th

 Addition Lot 

10B Block 2 Replat).  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Frank:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

Engineering Project Manager Fettig clarified that the following two items do not need 

action at this time as they were carried over from the Consent Agenda.   

4.          Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

174, Project No. 2012-16 (Plainview Heights 13th Addition).   

5.          Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

176, Project No. 2012-20 (Lakewood 6
th

 and 7
th

 Addition).   

 

K.         OTHER BUSINESS  

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Tibke moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 p.m. Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 17, 2013 

Page 9 of 9 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________ 

James Neubauer   Arlyn Van Beek, President 

City Administrator   Board of City Commissioners 

 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of September 23, 2013 

Page 1 of 1 

 The Mandan City Commission met in Special Session at noon on Monday, 

September 23, 2013 in the Dykshoorn Meeting Room at City Hall. Commissioners 

present via teleconference call were: Van Beek, Tibke, Frank, and Rohr.   Commissioner 

Braun and Department Head City Administrator Neubauer were present.  Also present: 

Deb Zodrow.  

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider approval of a charitable games of chance permit for Natalie Henke for 

September 28, 2013. Commissioner Frank motioned to approve the charitable games of 

chance permit for Natalie Henke for September 28, 2013. Commissioner Braun seconded 

the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; 

Commissioner Frank:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed.  

 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

There being no further actions to come before the Board, Commissioner Frank moved to 

adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the Board members present and the meeting adjourned at 12:04 

p.m. 

 

/s/ James Neubauer  /s/ Arlyn Van Beek 

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider results from the North Annexation proposal. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   

 August 20
th

, proposed resolution for annexation presented to the City Commission 

for their consideration 

 August 23
rd

, resolution for annexation published in Mandan News 

 August 23
rd

, certified letters mailed to property owners in annexation area 

 August 30
th

, resolution published for 2
nd

 time 

 September 23, 2013, 4:30 p.m. deadline for protests to the annexation 

 October 1, 2013, 5:30 p.m. Public Hearing regarding sufficiency of protests 

 

Several large pieces of property have changed hands over the past few years and new 

owners have requested city services (water, sanitary sewer, streets) in order to develop 

their property into urban commercial and residential areas. In order to serve these areas, 

an annexation of approximately 876.66 acres was proposed. 

 

As of September 23, 2013, protests of the annexation amounted to 127.97 acres or 14.6% 

of the land area in the proposed annexation. In order to prevent the annexation from 

occurring 219.17 (25%) acres would need to have been protested. Therefore, the area not 

protesting is above 75% and thus not a sufficient amount of land area protested to halt the 

annexation. 

 

Should the Board find that there is not a sufficiency of protests, the annexation resolution 

is signed and in turn recorded with the County recorder. The annexation is effective as of 

the date of the recording, and for tax purposes, the annexation is effective as of February 

1, 2014. The property tax statements that are issued in December 2014 will reflect this. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Map of the annexation area 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 25, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: North Annexation Public Hearing 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject: North Annexation 

Page 2 of 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  uncertain at this time 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the city find that there are insufficient protests to 

prohibit the proposed annexation. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to find there are insufficient protests to prohibit the 

proposed annexation. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   Request to change the zoning of a part of Section 16, 

Township 139N, Range 81W from R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family 

Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) to all RM (Multi-Family Residential). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Dennis Meyer and Eagle Ridge 

Development for a zone change from R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family 

Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) to all RM (Multi-Family 

Residential).The property is the Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition plat. The Planning & Zoning 

Commission voted unanimously to approve the zone change on August 26, 2013. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1. Office Report 

                                    2. Map 

                                    3. Ordinance  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City 

Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve the zone change to RM (Multi-Family Residential). 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 26, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 

16, Township 139 N, Range 81W(Eagle Ridge 1
st
 

Addition). 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 2 & Ord. No. 2   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 16, Township 139 N, Range 

81W(Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition). 

Page 2 of 5 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the zone change for Eagle Ridge 1
st
 

Addition in Section 16, Township 139 North, Range 81West from R7 (Single-Family 

Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) to all 

RM (Multi-Family Residential). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 16, Township 139 N, Range 

81W(Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition). 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 

September 26, 2013 

 

Applicant(s):  Eagle Ridge Development, LLC 

 

Owner(s):  same 

 

Requested Action:  Zone Change Approval 

 

Name of Subdivision:  Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition  

 

Legal Description:  All of Terra Vallee 6
th

 Addition in Section 16, Township 139N, 

Range 81W 

 

Located:  8
th

 Avenue NW 

 

Parcel Acreage:  24.75 

 

Existing Land Use:  vacant 

 

Proposed Land Use: two-family and multi-family residential 

 

Adjacent Land Use: vacant, school and single-family residential 

 

Existing Zoning: R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family 

Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) 

 

Proposed Zoning: RM (Multi-Family Residential) 

 

Adjacent Zoning: A (Agricultural), R7 (Single-Family Residential) and RM 

(Multi-Family Residential) 

 

Fee(s) Required: $250.00 Date Received:     August 2, 2013 

 

Adjacent Property Owner Notification: September 5, 2013  

 

Dates of Legal Notices:  September 13 & 20, 2013 

 

Recommendations:  The Planning Office recommends approval. 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 16, Township 139 N, Range 

81W(Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition). 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 16, Township 139 N, Range 

81W(Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition). 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1169 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

ORDINANCE 1088 OF THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES 

RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota shall be excluded from R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 

(Two-Family Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) and shall be included in 

the RM (Multi-Family Residential) zoning namely, 

 

Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W in the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota  

  

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted.  The city administrator is authorized 

and directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in 

accordance with this section.   

          

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

 

Attest: 

 

            

City Administrator 

 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013   

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:                        October 15, 2013  

Publication Date:          

Recording Date:                             ______________ 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider a zone change from CC (Heavy Commercial) 

Restricted(the restrictions being no railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair(as a 

primary use), commercial parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, 

tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) to CC 

(Heavy Commercial) no restrictions for Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Our office received a request from Western 

Partners LLP for a zone change from CC (Heavy Commercial) Restricted  to CC (Heavy 

Commercial) no restrictions for Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 

Addition.  I have attached the August 26
th

 Planning and Zoning Minutes(see New 

Business #1).  The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 10 ayes and 3 nayes to approve 

removing the restrictions from only Lot 1, Block 1. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1. Office Report 

                                    2. Map 

                                    3. Ordinance 

                                    4. Planning and Zoning August 26
th

 Minutes  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City 

Attorney for his review. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 26, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 

31, Township 139 N, Range 80W (Sylvester’s 

Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition, Lot 1Block 1). 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 3 & Ord. No. 3   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 2 of 14 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve removing the restrictions from Lot 1, Block 1, 

Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve removing the restrictions from Lot 1, Block 

1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 3 of 14 

 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 

September 26, 2013 

Applicant(s):  Western Partners LLP 

 

Requested Action:  Zone Change Approval 

 

Name of Subdivision:  Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition   

 

Legal Description:  Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition in 

Section 31, Township 139N, Range 80W 

 

Located:  Memorial Highway SE 

 

Existing Land Use:  vacant 

 

Proposed Land Use: convenience store and car wash 

 

Adjacent Land Use: Kroll’s Diner across Memorial Highway and vacant 

 

Existing Zoning: CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with restrictions) no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair (as a primary use), 

commercial parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, 

steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or 

any of the wholesale group. 

 

Proposed Zoning: CC (Heavy Commercial), removing the restrictions 

 

Adjacent Zoning: CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with same restrictions) and 

MD Restricted (Heavy Industrial/Heavy Commercial) will 

allow radio or t.v. transmitting station and all CC heavy 

commercial uses except: railroad trackage, auto laundry (car 

wash), auto repair garage (as a primary use), commercial 

parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, 

tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or any of the 

wholesale group. 

 

Fee(s) Required: $250.00 Date Received:     July 17, 2013 

 

Adjacent Property Owner Notification: September 4, 2013  

 

Dates of Legal Notices:  September 13 & 20, 2013 

 

Recommendations:  The Planning Office recommends approval. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 4 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 5 of 14 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1170 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

ORDINANCE 1088 OF THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES 

RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota shall be excluded from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with 

restrictions of no railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial 

parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) and shall be included in the CC 

(Heavy Commercial removing the restrictions) zoning namely, 

 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s 3
rd

 Addition in Section 31, Township 139N, Range 80W, 

City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota  

  

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted.  The city administrator is authorized 

and directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in 

accordance with this section.   

 

          

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

 

            

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013   

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:                       October 15, 2013  

Publication:                                                            _______________ 

Recording Date:                            _______________ 

 

MANDAN PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 6 of 14 

 

MANDAN CITY HALL BUILDING 

August 26, 2013 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of Mandan duly met in session in the meeting 

room of the Mandan City Hall Building on August 26, 2013 at 5:15 p.m. CDT. 

 

Commissioners Present:  Zachmeier, Fleischer, Hilfer, Robinson, Klein, Knoll, Van 

Beek, Leingang, Kelly, Laber, Wetch, Mehlhoff 

 

Commissioners Absent:   

 

Commissioner Fleischer motions to approve the July 22, 2013 minutes. Commissioner 

Laber seconds.  Upon vote, the motion receives unanimous approval of the Board. 

 

New Business 

   

1. A request from Western Partners LLP for a change zoning. The request is to 

change the zoning of Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition in 

Section 37, Township 139N, Range 81W from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial) to 

CC (Heavy Commercial), removing the restrictions. The property is located on 

Memorial Highway SE. 

 

The zone change request is for Lots 1 & 2. The gas station would be built on Lot 1 and 

extend onto Lot 2 a little ways. The request is to remove the restrictions so a car wash can 

be added to the back of the building. 

 

The restrictions were placed on the heavy commercial in 2009. The restrictions are no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair (as a primary use), commercial parking 

lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group. 

 

Mike Wachter, a partner in Wind River Properties, speaks. They own Lot 3 in this 

subdivision. Their plans were for a strip mall.  He supports lifting the restrictions on Lot 

1, but not Lot 2 because it is directly behind his lot. He is concerned about what could be 

placed behind his building and possible noise and aesthetic issues. In 2009, the city 

studied what they wanted on this end of the strip. It was determined commercial with the 

restrictions so if somebody wanted to put up an office building, they would not have a 

noisy auto repair shop next door. If the restrictions are lifted on Lot 2, he may have to 

downscale his building plans. 

 

Kim says the building inspection department ok’d the site plan. Right now they could 

build an auto repair shop on Lot 2 if it was not a primary use.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 7 of 14 

 

Tim Miller, Missouri River Contracting, is doing construction on the project. There are 

no plans for Lot 2 at this time. He had a car wash supplier fax him some information. The 

decibel level at the entrance of the car wash would be about 95. Forty feet away it would 

be reduced to 78. The exit would be 101 decibels decreasing to 81 at forty feet away. 

They planned the car wash on the back to enhance the view from the strip. The lot will be 

half pavement and half grass.  

 

Mike Wachter says he doesn’t have an issue with the car wash, but does have one with 

the open door on what can be put on Lot 2. The city just passed a noise ordinance. On a 

commercial property, the noise ordinance is 65. The city and Planning & Zoning sold him 

on the restrictions three years ago and he wants to stay the course.  

 

There was another adjacent property owner who sent a letter requesting the restrictions be 

lifted on Lot 1 only. 

 

Kim says the Planning Department supports the request because it becomes difficult to 

monitor when restrictions are lifted one lot at a time.  

 

Commissioner Zachmeier wants to know if a study was approved by ordinance and if 

approving this would go against city ordinance. Kim says she did not find evidence of an 

official study and she was not involved at that time, but thinks the intention was to keep 

more unsightly uses from that area. She explains this is a change of zoning and every time 

a zone change is approved it is written as an ordinance.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve lifting the restrictions on Lot 1 only. 

Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes with the following vote: 

Zachmeier-nay, Fleischer-aye, Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-aye, Knoll-aye, Van 

Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, Laber-nay, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-aye.  

 

2. A request from M & P, LLP for a change of zoning. The request is to change the 

zoning of Lots 1-6, Block 1, Midway 14
th

 Addition in Section 31, Township 139N, 

Range 81W from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial) to CC (Heavy Commercial), 

removing the restrictions. The property is located on Memorial Highway SE.  

 

This request is similar to item one. Dwight Pletan, Action Sports is requesting the 

restrictions be lifted so they can build a warehouse for the store. The warehouse would be 

located behind the store. One of the restrictions is no storage/warehouse.  He wants to 

market the remaining lots. Kim says the Planning Department supports the request 

because the storage is for the store and it would be sightlier to have things stored outside.  

 

Action Sports would be on Lot 1. There is a letter from an adjacent property owner, 

Randy Rhone, Developers LLC, supporting the request except for Lots 4 & 5. These two 

lots are next to his lot and Wachter’s lot. They want to protect their interests from 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 8 of 14 

 

anything that could potentially cause problems for their projects such as noise or visual 

pollution.    

 

Mayor Van Beek doesn’t know why Dwight Pletan’s lots should be restricted when 

Wachter has not developed his property and has not brought in plans to do so since 2009.  

 

Wachter says they are not opposed to this request. The letter came from Randy Rhone. 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve removing the restrictions on Lots 1-3 & 6, 

but not on Lots 4 & 5. Commissioner Fleischer seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes 

with the following vote: Zachmeier-nay, Fleischer-aye, Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-

aye, Knoll-aye, Van Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, Laber-nay, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-

aye. 

 

3. A request from Andrew Meldahl, Pinnacle Homes Inc. for final plat approval of 

the Replat of Lot 2A, Block 3, Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd

 Addition in Section 

6, Township 138N, Range 80W. The property is located on Shoal Loop SE. 

 

The plat splits the property into four lots.  

 

Jane Huizenga, 2503 Nash Lane, lives directly behind this property. She is here to find 

out exactly what they are building there.  

 

A representative from Swenson Hagen says the plans are a four unit building. These units 

will be for purchase and will not be rentals. The entrance will be off Shoal Loop.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Van Beek 

seconds.  Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

4. A request from Wade Vogel for final plat approval of the Replat of Lots 4b & 5, 

Block 3, Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd

 Addition in Section 6, Township 138N, 

Range 80W. The property is located on Shoal Loop SE. 

 

The map in the commissioner’s packets is not the correct map. A correct one was handed 

out before the meeting. The correction names the private drive Lexi Loop SE. This street 

is not wide enough to be a public street. Lot 5 is designated as undivided interest equally 

to the property owners so it cannot come back to the city. The property is zoned CC, 

which allows dwellings. The lot lines extend back to the center of the bay, which is 

unbuildable. 

 

Commissioner Labor motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Knoll seconds.  

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 9 of 14 

 

5. A request from Dennis Meyer and Eagle Ridge Development for final plat 

approval of Eagle Ridge Addition. Said addition is all of Terra Vallee 6
th

 Addition 

in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W. The property is located on 8
th

 Avenue 

NW. 

 

This property was platted as Terra Valle 6
th

 Addition at the beginning of this year. Eagle 

Ridge Development is in the process of purchasing the property. All the streets that were 

platted in Terra Vallee 6
th

 are in the process of being vacated. This plat gives a bigger 

right-of-way for 8
th

 Avenue NW allowing the city to go around gas lines that run along 

there.  

 

Commissioner Fleischer comments about redoing this plat again and rezoning the whole 

property to RM.  

 

Kim says they are planning three apartment buildings on the north side and twin homes 

for the rest of the property.  

 

The water runoff will come through what will be the vacated 28
th

 Avenue NW and come 

into a detention pond on Lot 7.   

 

A sidewalk is planned behind the apartment buildings for pedestrian access. There is an 

access easement on the backside of Lots 1 and 5. Lots 2 and 3 will have a private drive 

for twin homes on both sides.  

 

Rick Hofferber, 904 27
th

 Street NW, lives against the proposed detention pond. He does 

not have too many objections. He wants to know what portion is going to be home 

ownership and how much is going to be rentals. He is also concerned about where the 

water is going to escape from after the detention pond since there is no storm sewer in 

Terra Vallee. If there is a detention pond, is he going to have problems with mosquitos? 

He wants to know the project will be fulfilled and not unfinished.  

 

Justin Froseth, Engineering and Planning Director, says the plan is for a retention pond 

that would not fully drain and would be a water feature. The developers mentioned 

aeration and landscaping to make it a nice feature.   

 

Doug Erhardt, 1203 27
th

 Street NW, also owns property next to this water retention pond. 

He is worried the water will be coming his way. He said he has been surrounded by 

detention ponds and if it worked that would be fine, but so far it has not. He would like to 

see improvement.  

 

Commissioner Leingang asks if the Wal-Mart stormwater plan helps Terra Vallee. Doug 

agrees it did help some, but not all the area.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 10 of 14 

 

Kim says a stormwater plan has to be approved before they are issued any permits.  

 

Kevin Kluge, 2803 8
th

 Avenue NW, says this year is the first year he has had to use a 

sump pump. He wants to know how this pond will affect him.  

 

Justin Froseth says good engineering practices would involve using clay as a base to stop 

seepage. The stormwater plan would have to be reviewed.  

 

Commissioner Robinson says water issues are the number one issue that keeps coming 

up, so the neighbors’ concerns are valid.  

 

Jon Youness, Eagle Ridge Development, says the detention pond will be designed in 

accordance with required specifications. The development is planned to incorporate the 

location of the large storm sewer pipe and pond. Their intention is to have the pond act as 

a buffer between the development and the homes to the south. The units planned would 

all be rentals.  

 

Commissioner Laber motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Mehlhoff seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

6. A request from Dennis Meyer and Eagle Ridge Development for a change of 

zoning. The request is to change the zoning of Terra Vallee 6
th

 Addition (the 

proposed Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition) in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W. from 

R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and RM (Multi-

Family Residential) to all RM (Multi-Family Residential). The property is located on 

8
th

 Avenue NW.  

 

They are requesting RM zoning to accommodate the plans as discussed in the last item. 

The middle school property is zoned RM.  

 

Rick Hofferber wants to know what kind of rental units are going to be built. Are they 

going to be low income? He wants to protect his investment. He doesn’t want something 

haphazard. 

 

Jon Youness shows pictures of examples of units they have done and what they plan for 

this development. Each row house has a double garage with its own entry. The plans call 

for approximately 46 to 50 row homes. They dropped the elevation of the apartment 

buildings on the north side to lower the profile from the school.  

 

Commissioner Fleischer asks if R3.2 will work for the townhomes. Kim says the row 

homes will have 4 or 5 units per building and would need to be zoned RM. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 11 of 14 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Klein seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes with the following vote: Zachmeier-aye, Fleischer-nay, 

Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-aye, Knoll-aye, Van Beek-aye, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, 

Laber-aye, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-aye. 

 

7. A request from Keidel Family Limited Partnership for final plat approval of 

Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition in Section 3, Township 138N, Range 

81W. The property is located on the southeast corner of 19
th

 Street SW and 8
th

 

Avenue SW. 

 

This development is south of 19
th

 Street SW and Highway 6 is over to the west and 4
th

 

Avenue SW will line up to that same street on the north side. There was concern on the 

preliminary plat  with 8
th

 Avenue SW being only a half street. Kim requested something 

in writing confirming 8
th

 Avenue SW being installed as a full street. She has received an 

email stating that will be done. The construction of 8
th

 Street SW will end at this 

development and continue as developed.  

 

Commissioner Knoll motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Laber seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously. 

 

8. A request from Mandan Development Company LLC for final plat approval of 

Christianson’s 1
st
 Addition. Said addition is a replat of Lot A of Lot 3, Block 1, 

Boutrous Addition of the NE ¼ , a portion of the SW ¼ and a portion of the NW ¼ 

in Section 21 and a portion of the NW ¼ in Section 28, Township 139N, Range 81W. 

The property is located south of I94 along the west side of city limits.  

 

Kim says the Planning Department did not make a recommendation because the city still 

has some concerns. The Park District is still working with the developer with possibly 

doing some land swaps. She is also waiting for feedback from the DOT about Division 

Street NW connecting through and Boundary Street NW becoming a collector. It is 

important to have the DOT’s involvement on these two streets. There were also issues 

with WBI Energy Transmission, Inc. to be resolved. Kim does not know where the 

developer and WBI are on this. Kim thinks it would be appropriate to table this item until 

these are resolved.  

 

Commissioner Van Beek would rather make a motion to deny.  

 

Nate Vollmuth, representing Mandan Development Company, says they received 

correspondence from Kim last week regarding the DOT and they are fine with that. They 

also have a meeting set up with WBI tomorrow morning. He requests that it is tabled.  

 

President Robinson says it sounds like there are half a dozen holes to plug on this 

development. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 12 of 14 

 

 

DaNae Kautzmann, owns property with her siblings (Kautzmann Land) that is 

immediately south of Sunset Park. There is a drainage area below Davenport Hill that 

drains under 7
th

 Street. Because of the water, her family has concerns if storm sewer is 

going to be put in. She also asks if Division Street is going to be extended, what is the 

plan? Is the water going to be dammed or culverts put in? Is the water going to run along 

the current drainage area? If that is the case, they are going to lose more property than 

they have already lost because of the way the water runs currently. Is a lift station going to 

be put in? That will be needed. Her last question is how is it going to be funded? DaNae 

and her partners do not want to pay specials on somebody else’s development. They are 

not ready to development at this time.  

 

Nate says there will be three lift stations installed. The one to the very north and the one 

to the south would go in on this phase and the last one would be located to the west and 

would go in on the last phase. There is an existing pond that will be made larger. There 

will be added retention on part of the park land. He believes the Park District will try to 

get funding for some of the street construction. He understands the rest would probably 

be assessed to their development and the development to the south. He thinks if they want 

access to the new Division Street they have to talk to Engineering and the Park District.   

 

Karl Liepitz, resident, is here to speak on Sunset Park. The park has one of a kind green 

space. It provides mountain biking, hiking, frisbee golf, walking, etc. He uses the park 

probably three days a week. He knows a lot of people that do the same. He seen a map 

that looks like this development would be quite an infringement on the park. To him it 

sounds like the land swap with parks is a concession to the developer. He is concerned as 

a park user that the park should remain continuous. The park could become a great city 

landmark for the future.  

 

Division may take up some of the park property. Kim says it is critical to extend Division. 

The extension of Division may have a greater assessment area because of the benefit it 

would have to the area.  

 

Commissioner Leingang agrees that Division has to continue even though some park land 

may be lost.  

 

Lee Froelich, 2506 Lohstreter Road (old Lohstreter farmstead). He is currently county. He 

wants to know what this development would do to him. Would he be annexed?  

 

Kim says it is unknown if property around Lee will want to come into the city. This 

development is already annexed into the city. There are no plans to annex further at this 

time.  

 

Lee is concerned he will end up being annexed and what it could do to his specials.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 13 of 14 

 

 

Commissioner Leingang asks how he gets to downtown. Lee said he comes down 

Lohstreter and agreed it would be nice to take Division. He wants to know if he is going 

to be county or city. He can’t get anybody to come out and plow or fix his road. He had to 

get Bruce Strinden with the county to come out and look to get the road fixed.  

 

Kim tells Lee he can request to be annexed if he wants to. But until other requests come 

in for annexation, there is nothing planned now.  

 

Lee asks if he were annexed will he get paved streets, lights, city water and sewer and 

who pays for it. Right now he is on a well and septic. Kim tells him it would be assessed 

and would be his choice for city services.  

 

Zachary Allen, 1900 Lincoln Place. He did not receive notice about this plat, but believes 

he would be in the assessment area. Kim tells him notices are sent to property owners 

within 300’ of the development. His concern is it sounds like Division assessment is a lot 

larger. Kim tells him they will be notified if the street project is proposed.  

 

Commissioner Laber motions to deny the final plat. Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon 

vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

9. A request from Mandan Development Company LLC for a change of zoning. The 

request is to change the zoning of a Replat of Lot A of Lot 3, Block 1, Boutrous 

Addition (the proposed Christianson’s 1
st
 Addition) of the NE ¼, a portion of the 

SW ¼ and a portion of the NW ¼ in Section 21 and a portion of the NW ¼ in 

Section 28, Township 139N, Range 81W from A (Agricultural) and CC (Heavy 

Commercial) to R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and 

RM (Multi-Family Residential). The property is located south of I94 along the west 

side of city limits.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to deny the zone change. Commissioner Klein seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

1. Election of Commission officers and nominations for Vice President and 

President of the board. Commissioner Wetch’s term expires this month.  

 

Commissioner Wetch will not seek a second term. He plans on traveling a lot.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lot 1, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 14 of 14 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to nominate Bill Robinson as President and Shauna 

Laber as Vice President. Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes 

unanimously. 

 

2. Reminder: Joint meeting Mandan City Commission and Planning & Zoning 

Commission Tuesday, October 8, 2013, 5:30 p.m. – City Hall 

 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to adjourn. Commissioner Laber seconds.  Upon vote, 

the motion passes unanimously. 

 

The meeting adjourns at 6:22 p.m. 

 

nm 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider a zone change from CC (Heavy Commercial) 

Restricted(the restrictions being no railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair(as a 

primary use), commercial parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, 

tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) to CC 

(Heavy Commercial) no restrictions for Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Our office received a request from M&P, LLP for 

a zone change from CC (Heavy Commercial) Restricted  to CC (Heavy Commercial) no 

restrictions for Lots 1-6, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition.  I have attached the August 26
th

 

Planning and Zoning Minutes(see New Business #2).  The Planning & Zoning 

Commission voted 10 ayes and 3 nayes to approve removing the restrictions from only 

Lot 1-3 & 6, Block 1. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1. Office Report 

                                    2. Map 

                                    3. Ordinance 

                                    4. Planning and Zoning August 26
th

 Minutes  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City 

Attorney for his review. 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 26, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 

31, Township 139 N, Range 80W (Midway 14th 

Addition, Lot 1-3 & 6, Block 1). 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 4 & Ord. No. 4   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 2 of 14 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve removing the restrictions from Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 

1, Midway 14th Addition. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve removing the restrictions from Lots 1-3 & 

6, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 3 of 14 

 

MANDAN PLANNING OFFICE REPORT 

September 26, 2013 

 

Applicant(s):  M&P, LLP 

 

Owner(s):  same 

 

Requested Action:  Zone Change Approval 

 

Name of Subdivision:  Midway 14
th

 Addition  

 

Legal Description:  All of Lots 1 – 6, Block 1, Midway 14
th

 Addition in Section 31, 

Township 139N, Range 80W 

 

Located:  Memorial Highway SE 

 

Parcel Acreage:  11.66 

 

Existing Land Use:  vacant 

 

Proposed Land Use: commercial 

 

Adjacent Land Use: Agriculture, trailer sales and proposed Cenex 

 

Existing Zoning: CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial) no railroad trackage, auto 

laundry, auto repair (as a primary use), commercial parking 

lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery 

repair, storage building/warehouse or any of the wholesale 

group. 

 

Proposed Zoning: CC (Heavy Commercial), removing the restrictions 

 

Adjacent Zoning: A (Agricultural) and CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with 

restrictions) 

 

Fee(s) Required: $250.00 Date Received:     July 24, 2013 

 

Adjacent Property Owner Notification: September 5, 2013  

 

Dates of Legal Notices:  September 13 & 20, 2013 

 

Recommendations:  The Planning Office recommends approval. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 4 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 5 of 14 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1171 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE 

MANDAN MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with 

restrictions of no railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial 

parking lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) zoning and shall be included in the 

CC (Heavy Commercial removing the restrictions) namely, 

 

Lots 1-3 and 6, Block 1, Midway 14
th

 Addition in Section 31, Township 

139N, Range 81W in the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota 

 

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted. The city administrator is authorized 

and directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in 

accordance with this section.   

 

          

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

       

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013 

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:               October 15, 2013 

Publication Date:   ______________ 

Recording Date:             ______________ 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 6 of 14 

 

 

MANDAN PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

MANDAN CITY HALL BUILDING 

August 26, 2013 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of Mandan duly met in session in the meeting 

room of the Mandan City Hall Building on August 26, 2013 at 5:15 p.m. CDT. 

 

Commissioners Present:  Zachmeier, Fleischer, Hilfer, Robinson, Klein, Knoll, Van 

Beek, Leingang, Kelly, Laber, Wetch, Mehlhoff 

 

Commissioners Absent:   

 

Commissioner Fleischer motions to approve the July 22, 2013 minutes. Commissioner 

Laber seconds.  Upon vote, the motion receives unanimous approval of the Board. 

 

New Business 

   

1. A request from Western Partners LLP for a change zoning. The request is to 

change the zoning of Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition in 

Section 37, Township 139N, Range 81W from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial) to 

CC (Heavy Commercial), removing the restrictions. The property is located on 

Memorial Highway SE. 

 

The zone change request is for Lots 1 & 2. The gas station would be built on Lot 1 and 

extend onto Lot 2 a little ways. The request is to remove the restrictions so a car wash can 

be added to the back of the building. 

 

The restrictions were placed on the heavy commercial in 2009. The restrictions are no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair (as a primary use), commercial parking 

lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group. 

 

Mike Wachter, a partner in Wind River Properties, speaks. They own Lot 3 in this 

subdivision. Their plans were for a strip mall.  He supports lifting the restrictions on Lot 

1, but not Lot 2 because it is directly behind his lot. He is concerned about what could be 

placed behind his building and possible noise and aesthetic issues. In 2009, the city 

studied what they wanted on this end of the strip. It was determined commercial with the 

restrictions so if somebody wanted to put up an office building, they would not have a 

noisy auto repair shop next door. If the restrictions are lifted on Lot 2, he may have to 

downscale his building plans. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 7 of 14 

 

Kim says the building inspection department ok’d the site plan. Right now they could 

build an auto repair shop on Lot 2 if it was not a primary use.  

 

Tim Miller, Missouri River Contracting, is doing construction on the project. There are 

no plans for Lot 2 at this time. He had a car wash supplier fax him some information. The 

decibel level at the entrance of the car wash would be about 95. Forty feet away it would 

be reduced to 78. The exit would be 101 decibels decreasing to 81 at forty feet away. 

They planned the car wash on the back to enhance the view from the strip. The lot will be 

half pavement and half grass.  

 

Mike Wachter says he doesn’t have an issue with the car wash, but does have one with 

the open door on what can be put on Lot 2. The city just passed a noise ordinance. On a 

commercial property, the noise ordinance is 65. The city and Planning & Zoning sold him 

on the restrictions three years ago and he wants to stay the course.  

 

There was another adjacent property owner who sent a letter requesting the restrictions be 

lifted on Lot 1 only. 

 

Kim says the Planning Department supports the request because it becomes difficult to 

monitor when restrictions are lifted one lot at a time.  

 

Commissioner Zachmeier wants to know if a study was approved by ordinance and if 

approving this would go against city ordinance. Kim says she did not find evidence of an 

official study and she was not involved at that time, but thinks the intention was to keep 

more unsightly uses from that area. She explains this is a change of zoning and every time 

a zone change is approved it is written as an ordinance.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve lifting the restrictions on Lot 1 only. 

Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes with the following vote: 

Zachmeier-nay, Fleischer-aye, Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-aye, Knoll-aye, Van 

Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, Laber-nay, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-aye.  

 

2. A request from M & P, LLP for a change of zoning. The request is to change the 

zoning of Lots 1-6, Block 1, Midway 14
th

 Addition in Section 31, Township 139N, 

Range 81W from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial) to CC (Heavy Commercial), 

removing the restrictions. The property is located on Memorial Highway SE.  

 

This request is similar to item one. Dwight Pletan, Action Sports is requesting the 

restrictions be lifted so they can build a warehouse for the store. The warehouse would be 

located behind the store. One of the restrictions is no storage/warehouse.  He wants to 

market the remaining lots. Kim says the Planning Department supports the request 

because the storage is for the store and it would be sightlier to have things stored outside.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 8 of 14 

 

Action Sports would be on Lot 1. There is a letter from an adjacent property owner, 

Randy Rhone, Developers LLC, supporting the request except for Lots 4 & 5. These two 

lots are next to his lot and Wachter’s lot. They want to protect their interests from 

anything that could potentially cause problems for their projects such as noise or visual 

pollution.    

 

Mayor Van Beek doesn’t know why Dwight Pletan’s lots should be restricted when 

Wachter has not developed his property and has not brought in plans to do so since 2009.  

 

Wachter says they are not opposed to this request. The letter came from Randy Rhone. 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve removing the restrictions on Lots 1-3 & 6, 

but not on Lots 4 & 5. Commissioner Fleischer seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes 

with the following vote: Zachmeier-nay, Fleischer-aye, Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-

aye, Knoll-aye, Van Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, Laber-nay, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-

aye. 

 

3. A request from Andrew Meldahl, Pinnacle Homes Inc. for final plat approval of 

the Replat of Lot 2A, Block 3, Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd

 Addition in Section 

6, Township 138N, Range 80W. The property is located on Shoal Loop SE. 

 

The plat splits the property into four lots.  

 

Jane Huizenga, 2503 Nash Lane, lives directly behind this property. She is here to find 

out exactly what they are building there.  

 

A representative from Swenson Hagen says the plans are a four unit building. These units 

will be for purchase and will not be rentals. The entrance will be off Shoal Loop.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Van Beek 

seconds.  Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

4. A request from Wade Vogel for final plat approval of the Replat of Lots 4b & 5, 

Block 3, Lakewood Commercial Park 3
rd

 Addition in Section 6, Township 138N, 

Range 80W. The property is located on Shoal Loop SE. 

 

The map in the commissioner’s packets is not the correct map. A correct one was handed 

out before the meeting. The correction names the private drive Lexi Loop SE. This street 

is not wide enough to be a public street. Lot 5 is designated as undivided interest equally 

to the property owners so it cannot come back to the city. The property is zoned CC, 

which allows dwellings. The lot lines extend back to the center of the bay, which is 

unbuildable. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 9 of 14 

 

Commissioner Labor motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Knoll seconds.  

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

5. A request from Dennis Meyer and Eagle Ridge Development for final plat 

approval of Eagle Ridge Addition. Said addition is all of Terra Vallee 6
th

 Addition 

in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W. The property is located on 8
th

 Avenue 

NW. 

 

This property was platted as Terra Valle 6
th

 Addition at the beginning of this year. Eagle 

Ridge Development is in the process of purchasing the property. All the streets that were 

platted in Terra Vallee 6
th

 are in the process of being vacated. This plat gives a bigger 

right-of-way for 8
th

 Avenue NW allowing the city to go around gas lines that run along 

there.  

 

Commissioner Fleischer comments about redoing this plat again and rezoning the whole 

property to RM.  

 

Kim says they are planning three apartment buildings on the north side and twin homes 

for the rest of the property.  

 

The water runoff will come through what will be the vacated 28
th

 Avenue NW and come 

into a detention pond on Lot 7.   

 

A sidewalk is planned behind the apartment buildings for pedestrian access. There is an 

access easement on the backside of Lots 1 and 5. Lots 2 and 3 will have a private drive 

for twin homes on both sides.  

 

Rick Hofferber, 904 27
th

 Street NW, lives against the proposed detention pond. He does 

not have too many objections. He wants to know what portion is going to be home 

ownership and how much is going to be rentals. He is also concerned about where the 

water is going to escape from after the detention pond since there is no storm sewer in 

Terra Vallee. If there is a detention pond, is he going to have problems with mosquitos? 

He wants to know the project will be fulfilled and not unfinished.  

 

Justin Froseth, Engineering and Planning Director, says the plan is for a retention pond 

that would not fully drain and would be a water feature. The developers mentioned 

aeration and landscaping to make it a nice feature.   

 

Doug Erhardt, 1203 27
th

 Street NW, also owns property next to this water retention pond. 

He is worried the water will be coming his way. He said he has been surrounded by 

detention ponds and if it worked that would be fine, but so far it has not. He would like to 

see improvement.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 10 of 14 

 

Commissioner Leingang asks if the Wal-Mart stormwater plan helps Terra Vallee. Doug 

agrees it did help some, but not all the area.  

 

Kim says a stormwater plan has to be approved before they are issued any permits.  

 

Kevin Kluge, 2803 8
th

 Avenue NW, says this year is the first year he has had to use a 

sump pump. He wants to know how this pond will affect him.  

 

Justin Froseth says good engineering practices would involve using clay as a base to stop 

seepage. The stormwater plan would have to be reviewed.  

 

Commissioner Robinson says water issues are the number one issue that keeps coming 

up, so the neighbors’ concerns are valid.  

 

Jon Youness, Eagle Ridge Development, says the detention pond will be designed in 

accordance with required specifications. The development is planned to incorporate the 

location of the large storm sewer pipe and pond. Their intention is to have the pond act as 

a buffer between the development and the homes to the south. The units planned would 

all be rentals.  

 

Commissioner Laber motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Mehlhoff seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

6. A request from Dennis Meyer and Eagle Ridge Development for a change of 

zoning. The request is to change the zoning of Terra Vallee 6
th

 Addition (the 

proposed Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition) in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W. from 

R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and RM (Multi-

Family Residential) to all RM (Multi-Family Residential). The property is located on 

8
th

 Avenue NW.  

 

They are requesting RM zoning to accommodate the plans as discussed in the last item. 

The middle school property is zoned RM.  

 

Rick Hofferber wants to know what kind of rental units are going to be built. Are they 

going to be low income? He wants to protect his investment. He doesn’t want something 

haphazard. 

 

Jon Youness shows pictures of examples of units they have done and what they plan for 

this development. Each row house has a double garage with its own entry. The plans call 

for approximately 46 to 50 row homes. They dropped the elevation of the apartment 

buildings on the north side to lower the profile from the school.  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 11 of 14 

 

Commissioner Fleischer asks if R3.2 will work for the townhomes. Kim says the row 

homes will have 4 or 5 units per building and would need to be zoned RM. 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Klein seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes with the following vote: Zachmeier-aye, Fleischer-nay, 

Hilfer-aye, Robinson-aye, Klein-aye, Knoll-aye, Van Beek-aye, Leingang-aye, Kelly-aye, 

Laber-aye, Wetch-aye, Mehlhoff-aye. 

 

7. A request from Keidel Family Limited Partnership for final plat approval of 

Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition in Section 3, Township 138N, Range 

81W. The property is located on the southeast corner of 19
th

 Street SW and 8
th

 

Avenue SW. 

 

This development is south of 19
th

 Street SW and Highway 6 is over to the west and 4
th

 

Avenue SW will line up to that same street on the north side. There was concern on the 

preliminary plat  with 8
th

 Avenue SW being only a half street. Kim requested something 

in writing confirming 8
th

 Avenue SW being installed as a full street. She has received an 

email stating that will be done. The construction of 8
th

 Street SW will end at this 

development and continue as developed.  

 

Commissioner Knoll motions to approve the final plat. Commissioner Laber seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously. 

 

8. A request from Mandan Development Company LLC for final plat approval of 

Christianson’s 1
st
 Addition. Said addition is a replat of Lot A of Lot 3, Block 1, 

Boutrous Addition of the NE ¼ , a portion of the SW ¼ and a portion of the NW ¼ 

in Section 21 and a portion of the NW ¼ in Section 28, Township 139N, Range 81W. 

The property is located south of I94 along the west side of city limits.  

 

Kim says the Planning Department did not make a recommendation because the city still 

has some concerns. The Park District is still working with the developer with possibly 

doing some land swaps. She is also waiting for feedback from the DOT about Division 

Street NW connecting through and Boundary Street NW becoming a collector. It is 

important to have the DOT’s involvement on these two streets. There were also issues 

with WBI Energy Transmission, Inc. to be resolved. Kim does not know where the 

developer and WBI are on this. Kim thinks it would be appropriate to table this item until 

these are resolved.  

 

Commissioner Van Beek would rather make a motion to deny.  

 

Nate Vollmuth, representing Mandan Development Company, says they received 

correspondence from Kim last week regarding the DOT and they are fine with that. They 

also have a meeting set up with WBI tomorrow morning. He requests that it is tabled.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 12 of 14 

 

 

President Robinson says it sounds like there are half a dozen holes to plug on this 

development. 

 

DaNae Kautzmann, owns property with her siblings (Kautzmann Land) that is 

immediately south of Sunset Park. There is a drainage area below Davenport Hill that 

drains under 7
th

 Street. Because of the water, her family has concerns if storm sewer is 

going to be put in. She also asks if Division Street is going to be extended, what is the 

plan? Is the water going to be dammed or culverts put in? Is the water going to run along 

the current drainage area? If that is the case, they are going to lose more property than 

they have already lost because of the way the water runs currently. Is a lift station going to 

be put in? That will be needed. Her last question is how is it going to be funded? DaNae 

and her partners do not want to pay specials on somebody else’s development. They are 

not ready to development at this time.  

 

Nate says there will be three lift stations installed. The one to the very north and the one 

to the south would go in on this phase and the last one would be located to the west and 

would go in on the last phase. There is an existing pond that will be made larger. There 

will be added retention on part of the park land. He believes the Park District will try to 

get funding for some of the street construction. He understands the rest would probably 

be assessed to their development and the development to the south. He thinks if they want 

access to the new Division Street they have to talk to Engineering and the Park District.   

 

Karl Liepitz, resident, is here to speak on Sunset Park. The park has one of a kind green 

space. It provides mountain biking, hiking, frisbee golf, walking, etc. He uses the park 

probably three days a week. He knows a lot of people that do the same. He seen a map 

that looks like this development would be quite an infringement on the park. To him it 

sounds like the land swap with parks is a concession to the developer. He is concerned as 

a park user that the park should remain continuous. The park could become a great city 

landmark for the future.  

 

Division may take up some of the park property. Kim says it is critical to extend Division. 

The extension of Division may have a greater assessment area because of the benefit it 

would have to the area.  

 

Commissioner Leingang agrees that Division has to continue even though some park land 

may be lost.  

 

Lee Froelich, 2506 Lohstreter Road (old Lohstreter farmstead). He is currently county. He 

wants to know what this development would do to him. Would he be annexed?  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 13 of 14 

 

Kim says it is unknown if property around Lee will want to come into the city. This 

development is already annexed into the city. There are no plans to annex further at this 

time.  

 

Lee is concerned he will end up being annexed and what it could do to his specials.  

 

Commissioner Leingang asks how he gets to downtown. Lee said he comes down 

Lohstreter and agreed it would be nice to take Division. He wants to know if he is going 

to be county or city. He can’t get anybody to come out and plow or fix his road. He had to 

get Bruce Strinden with the county to come out and look to get the road fixed.  

 

Kim tells Lee he can request to be annexed if he wants to. But until other requests come 

in for annexation, there is nothing planned now.  

 

Lee asks if he were annexed will he get paved streets, lights, city water and sewer and 

who pays for it. Right now he is on a well and septic. Kim tells him it would be assessed 

and would be his choice for city services.  

 

Zachary Allen, 1900 Lincoln Place. He did not receive notice about this plat, but believes 

he would be in the assessment area. Kim tells him notices are sent to property owners 

within 300’ of the development. His concern is it sounds like Division assessment is a lot 

larger. Kim tells him they will be notified if the street project is proposed.  

 

Commissioner Laber motions to deny the final plat. Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon 

vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

9. A request from Mandan Development Company LLC for a change of zoning. The 

request is to change the zoning of a Replat of Lot A of Lot 3, Block 1, Boutrous 

Addition (the proposed Christianson’s 1
st
 Addition) of the NE ¼, a portion of the 

SW ¼ and a portion of the NW ¼ in Section 21 and a portion of the NW ¼ in 

Section 28, Township 139N, Range 81W from A (Agricultural) and CC (Heavy 

Commercial) to R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family Residential) and 

RM (Multi-Family Residential). The property is located south of I94 along the west 

side of city limits.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to deny the zone change. Commissioner Klein seconds. 

Upon vote, the motion passes unanimously.  

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

1. Election of Commission officers and nominations for Vice President and 

President of the board. Commissioner Wetch’s term expires this month.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013  

Subject: Consider a change of zoning of a part of Section 31, Township 139 N, Range 

80W (Lots 1-3 & 6, Block 1 Midway 14th Addition). 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 

Commissioner Wetch will not seek a second term. He plans on traveling a lot.  

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to nominate Bill Robinson as President and Shauna 

Laber as Vice President. Commissioner Klein seconds. Upon vote, the motion passes 

unanimously. 

 

2. Reminder: Joint meeting Mandan City Commission and Planning & Zoning 

Commission Tuesday, October 8, 2013, 5:30 p.m. – City Hall 

 

 

Commissioner Leingang motions to adjourn. Commissioner Laber seconds.  Upon vote, 

the motion passes unanimously. 

 

The meeting adjourns at 6:22 p.m. 

 

nm 

 

 

 



LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

I Consent No. 1 i I 

''·<1~&'fJ.1f~~,, 
LICENSING SECTION 
SFN 7926 (1012012) 1 

Type: ~Local Permit * D Charity Local Permit 
Permit Number 

2013-46 
1"an1e of Organization Oate(s) Authorized (Read instruction 2) 

Bismarck Sinale File 
Contact Person Business Phone Number 11/8/2013 to 12/31/2013 

Dorothy Simon (701) 258-1447 Beginning Ending 
Mailing Address City J State Zip Code 

912 East Owens Avenue #2 Bismarck ND 58501-0000 
Site Name Site Address 

Mandan Eagles Club 1400 Collins Avenue 
City State J ZIP Code County 

Mandan ND 58554-00( Morton 
Check the Game(s) Authorized: ~ Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charily Local Permit. 

OBingo ORaffle ~ Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker' D Twenty-one• D Paddlewheels" 

Restriction: 

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit" with the city or county auditor .arut Office of 
Attorney General within 30 days of the event. 

Date Printed Name of City or County Auditor Auditor Telephone Number 

9/17/2013 
Signat'{\e of: @City A~\ D County Auditor 

,\,., O D 
,;.1 ,..+-- j, ••• .. 

Jay Gruebele (701) 667-3250 

Please see the instructions on the Oacksltie of this form on how fo complete the Perm ft. 
For a raffle or calendar raffle, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard Raffle Ticket" below. 

------------------- cu~ong~~~--------------------------

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET: 

1. Name of organization; 
2. Ticket number; 
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price: 
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player. or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize 

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandlse prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient 
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the 
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price; 

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print 
the authorizing city or county and permit number: 

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win; 
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later. date and time of that 

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the 
drawing; 

8. Location and street address of the drawing; 
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is 

or is not liable for sales or use tax; 
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least 

'_' _" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize; 
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation; 
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won 

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances: and 
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a 

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars. 



''!-.Jt&' . 
APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 'fe ,.._, / 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL \p 
SFN 9338 (9-2009) 

~ocal Permit • O Charity Local Permit (one event per year) 'L / Application for: 

Name of Non-profit Organizaflon ,J 
'b1s i>0v1rc. /).Sin )c .. /r/ )e.. 
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation an the Disbursement of Net Income 

COD V-6 t I L _s / n D 
Business Address City 

State 
il) _[) 

Date(s) of A~ 

-:~-i- . --;!-0 
Title. 

f're...s 

No .j 6to 7J c <!. )} 0 -"'- .J 
Business Phone Number 

10 I - .;J,.fi fl - J t./ '-I 7 
State Zip Code 

Zip Code I 
, J2s8 

State 

ND 

Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: " Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

O Singo O Raflle igicalendar Ralfle O Sports Pool O Poker• O Twenty-one • O Paddlewheels • 

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED 

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of 
o,:.~ 

Game Type Description of Prize 
Retail Value of 

n~-~ 

5ol6n /Jo.J!ef 1r: lYJW-1t.:u.,1-. 7 
, 

~ o L "::t..lL 1 

(UmitS12,0CO per year) 

Total: $ /{)!)[) 

Does !he organization presenlly have a state gaming license?~ No 0 Yes ~ If "Yes," !he organization is not eligible for a focal pennit or charity local 
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240. 

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year Jufy 1 through June 30? D No Wes - If "Yes," 
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit. ' 

Has !he organization received a roca! permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? 0 No fNr'Yes - If ''Yes.'' 
indicate the total value of all prizes previously awarded: $ ._3,3, 51) . Th;s amount is part of the total pn·ze limit of $12,000 per yd87."\ 

Sig/l~te of Organizatio_B's T?~ Executive Official 

.!JM- :::tftv0 d Jrt,fhu 
Date 

9-/h - )!5 
1 

..... ..., .. ,,,,c.:.J"r·11v11e r·uJmt 
~~ '.. ..., ' . 





LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
LICENSING SECTION 

I Consent No. 1 ii 

SFN 17926 (10/2012) . ·f {!~~,'fj,~J~(f;~"'~-· 
Type: 0 Local Permit * 0 Charity Local Permit 

Permit Number 

2013-49 
.-.iame of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Read instruction 2) 

Ten Spot Scratch 
Conlact Person Business Phone Number 10/7/3013 lo 10/13/2013 

Shannon Schauer {701) 425-3205 Beginning Ending 

Mailing Address City I Stale Zip Code 

120 West Deer Street Mandan ND 58554-0000 
Site Nan1e Site Address 

Ten Spot Loanes 107 11 Avenue Ne 
City State I ZIP Code County 

Mandan ND 58554-00( Morton 
Check the Game(s} Authorized: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddtewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

D Bingo IKJRaffie D Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker• D Twenty-one• D Paddlewheets• 

Restriction; 

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit" with the city or county auditor mu!. Office of 
Attorney General within 30 days of the event. 

Date Signature of: ~City Auditor l!fCounty Auditor Printed Name of City or County Auditor Auditor Telephone Number 

9123/2013 \.,, tl\.A>•l~J .. Jay Gruebele (701) 667-3250 

Please see the instructions onc!_fuYba~§lde of this form on how to complete the Permit. 
For a raffle or calendar raffle, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard Raffle Ticket" below. 

___________________ cu~ngthi~~--------------------------

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET: 

1. Name of organization; 
2. Ticket number; 
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price; 
4. .Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize 

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient 
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the 
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price; 

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print 
the authorizing city or county and permit number; 

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win; 
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that 

announcement For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the 
drawing; 

8. Location and street address of the drawing; 
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is 

or ls not liable for sales or use tax; 
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least 

'_' _" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize; 
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation; 
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or rnerchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won 

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and 
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a 

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars. 



/ i 

V--eu \ \ -1.. 
1 \ .~ 

/.,_/ - ; / 

/ 

Y1 0 
c / !-

Application for: , Local Permit *0Charity Local Permit (oneeventperlear) 
~N--f~N--0----------+-'------~----~1'-""-rl--+-r--r---+-f--h - /j 

am~. on-profit r951nizalion ' Date_t~) of Activity , -· -·- ,.. ... ~ 'i..1 

c~r-1 ~)·- 5[' c:· ) c1.ftl __ e:i:~;3 '.).2i~"?>-1a--Jd· 6-f7':-::> 

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
SFN 9338 (9-2009) ~··· 

Per~o !J:esponsible fort e Gaming_Qper~tion and !he Disbursement of Net Income JJ.~e e~~iness Ph9ne Number 

."--~ Ccr!()Ol\ _"J:~f'llLLt,"._1- '/O/----',.l,2.)<3_)CC5 

Site Address 

/o'-
City County. 

:\I 
Check lhe Game(s) t9 be Conducted: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

D Bingo µ-Raffle ocalendar r<affle D Sports Pool D Poker. D Twenty-one. D Paddlewheels • 

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED 

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of 
o-'·- o"''" 

-\?a~~ \e_ ib:x>WlrNI i -k!JJS :$_ "vy-)f{'/ 
v 

.. - - -· . 
'-.J u 

Total: 
(U:Js1~,:oo .:::\ ~~), 
$~~l:J')\ 

'-

ln~~nd,:d uses of ga~ln? P~.o~~ed~: \:\ e .l p [?Lc.j ~~)y" 0(,,,LY- home (Y'tct:tCheS 
(.\_,, 10 -tr L>( )\- ::n e :::;, c.>:.t- -f-1-&~ , -v-/ · 1) /:- -the L1~tlc .5 ... 1 ... _ 

Does !he organization presenlly have a state gaming license?~ No 
c/ 

O Yes - If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a !ocal permit or charity local 
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240. 

Has the organization received a charity local permit from thls or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? D No D Yes - If "Yes," 
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit 

Has the organization received a local permit from !his or another city or county for lhe fiscal year July 1 lhrough June 30? 'lg! No D Yes - If "Yes," 
indicate the total value of at! prizes previously awarded: $ This amount is part of the total pnle limit of $·12,000 per year. 

,--- \ 
•' J (. ./J. ... 

--- ' [r) _\ 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Police Department is requesting Board approval 

with accepting a traffic safety grant/contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation Traffic Safety Office.  The grant/contract provides reimbursement for 

overtime and mileage when working, Occupant Protection Enforcement, Impaired 

Driving Enforcement blitz, and Underage Drinking.        

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In agreement with the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation Traffic Safety Office, the Mandan Police Department would receive 

reimbursement of cost in conducting extra patrols during state wide campaigns efforts 

with reducing the number of motor vehicle crash fatalities and enforcement efforts 

addressing underage drinking.  The grant/contract identifies reimbursement funding of 

$12,050, for overtime and mileage.  The grant/contract period is October 1, 2013 through 

September 1, 2014.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Copy of contract.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $12,050 reimbursable funding to the city for cost with salaries and 

mileage.  The cost of these additional enforcement efforts are part of the approved 2013 

budget and requested in the 2014 budget.       

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Off -duty officers will be working overtime hours on a voluntary 

basis.    

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 25, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

PRESENTER: Chief Dennis A. Bullinger 

SUBJECT: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety 

Contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, Traffic Safety Office.  

 

  

Consent No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 2 of 10 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the acceptance of the Traffic Safety Grant/Contract 

#12121715 for $12,050.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the acceptance of Traffic Safety Contract 

#12131643 from the North Dakota Department of Transportation, for the time period of 

October 1, 2013 to September 1, 2014.   

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 3 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 4 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 5 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 6 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 7 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 8 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 9 of 10 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation.    

Page 10 of 10 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize a change order to extend the contract completion date 

for the storm sewer, curb and gutter, electrical trenching and base lift of asphalt of September 

17
th
, 2013 to September 30

th
, 2013 to allow for rain days.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Change order is being requested to allow for the rain days 

that took place in delaying the work. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   1. Change Order Request. 

                                       2. Swenson and Hagen’s Recommendation 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   None 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the change order for the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to authorize a change order on Street Improvement District 

No. 185, Project No. 2013-19 to extend the contract completion date for the storm sewer, curb 

and gutter, electrical trenching and base lift of asphalt of September 17
th
, 2013 to September 30

th
, 

2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 27, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Consider authorizing a work change order on 

Street Improvement District No. 185, Project No. 

2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2nd Addition). 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 185, 

Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2
nd

 Addition). 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 185, 

Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2
nd

 Addition). 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject: Consider authorizing a change order on Street Improvement District No. 185, 

Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2
nd

 Addition). 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Consider administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   

 

Promotion Policy 

On May 7, 2013, the Board of City Commissioners approved Ordinance No. 1145 and the 

current Promotion Policy. However, the following revisions are necessary to the existing 

Policy at this time: 

 The additional 5% will require written justification submitted from the 

Department Manager to the Human Resources Department and the City 

Administrator to support the increase. 

 Compensation above the mid-point will require the prior approval of the City 

Administrator. 

 

Salary Policy 

The Salary Policy will provide consistency for Departments when prospective employees 

receive compensation offers from the City. For compensation above the minimum range 

of the pay grade for new employees, the Policy will require written justification submitted 

from the Department Manager to the Human Resources Department and the City 

Administrator, and will also require the prior approval of the City Administrator.    

 

The Human Resources Department has been directed to review Title 4 of the Mandan 

Code of Ordinances to recommend proposed changes relating to City’s Classification and 

Salary Plans.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 Promotion Policy 

 Salary Policy 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 26, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 

PRESENTER: Greg Welch 

SUBJECT: Administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies 

 

  

Consent #4  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: October I, 2013 
Subject: Administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies 
Page 2 of2 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
NIA 

STAFF IMPACT: 
The Policies will provide better administrative guidelines for the City's Department 
Managers. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
Submitted to Malcolm Brown, City Attorney. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
To approve the administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Move to approve the administrative guidelines for City Pay Policies. 



PROMOTION POLICY 

Employees receiving a promotion shall receive at least a 5% increase or the minimum 
of the range for the new position. After the probationary period of employment, nevl or 
promoted employees in the position may receive another salary consideration of up to a 
5% increase with written justification submitted from the Department Manager to the 
Human Resources Department and the City Administrator. Compensation above the 
mid-point will be offered in exception and only with the consent of the City Administrator. 
However, the additional 5% salary inerease will be given only up to 95% of the ne·N 
range. In other words, no additional salary inerease will be given to the employee, after 
the probationary period in the new position, if sueh an inerease would put the employee 
over 95% of the mid point of the new salary range. Mandan Code of Ordinances 4-06-
10. 

Approval Date: 5/7/13 
Revision Date: 10/1/13 



SALARY POLICY 

Department heads are responsible for assigning pay rates to newly hired employees 
within the established pay grade of the position occupied by the employee within the 
following guidelines. Department heads are authorized to extend fair and equitable 
offers not to exceed the minimum of the range of the new position. Compensation 
above the minimum requires written justification submitted from the Department 
Manager to the Human Resources Department and the City Administrator and will be 
offered in exception and only with the consent of the City Administrator. Mandan Code 
of Ordinances 4-06-10. 

Approval Date: 10/1/13 



"WHERETHEWEsrBEGINS" 

I Consent No. 5 

CITY 01' 
MANDAN 

MANDAN CITY HALL - 20.5 2nd Avenue NW 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 58554 
701-667-3215 •FAX: 701-667-3223 • www.cityofmandan.com 

PROCLAMATION 

CITY OEPARTMENlS 

ADMINISTRATION 667-3215 
ASSESSING/BUILDING INSPECTION 667-3230 
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 667-3435 
CEMETERY 667-601\4 
ENGINEER/PLANNING & ZONlNC 667-3225 
FINANCE 667-3213 
FIRE 667-3200 
HUMAN RESOURCES 667-3217 
LANDFILL 667-011)4 
MUNICIPAL COURT 6(17-3270 
POLICE 667-3455 
PUBLIC WORKS 667-3240 
WASTEWATERTREATM~NT 667-3276 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 667·327l 
UTILITY BILLING 667-3219 
WATER TREATMENT 667-3275 

NATIONAL DISABILITY EMPLOYMENT AWARENESS MONTH: 

WHEREAS, Workplaces welcoming of the talents of all people, including people with 
disabilities, are a critical part of our efforts to build an inclusive community and strong economy; 
and 

WHEREAS, In this spirit the city of Mandan North Dakota is recognizing October as National 
Disability Employment Awareness Month; and 

WHEREAS, To celebrate the many and varied contributions of people with diverse abilities 
activities should reinforce the value and talent people with disabilities add to our workplaces and 
communities and affirm Mandan North Dakota's commitment to an inclusive community. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Arlyn Van Beek, do hereby proclaim October 2013 as National 
Disability Employment Awareness Month in the city of Mandan. In so doing, I call upon 
employers, schools and other community organizations in Mandan North Dakota to observe this 
month with appropriate programs and activities, and to advance its important message that 
people with disabilities are equal to the task throughout the year. 

Dated this I st day of October, 2013 

Attest: 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

Arlyn Van Beek, President 
Board of City Commissioners 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #148.   

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   The project, along with cost and description of the 

improvements provided within the district, are as follows: 

 

 Street Improvement District #148 - ($967,489.29)  provided for the 

improvement to said streets within this district shall include, but not limited to, 

concrete streets with curb and gutter, installation of storm sewer, water mains, 

sanitary sewer mains, street lighting, and bike trails from Division Street NE to 

Main Street (Mandan Avenue). 

 

The assessment list for this district was published in the Mandan News and the public 

hearing before the Special Assessment Commission was held on August 7, 2013.  There 

were three residents with objections relative to this project (Deborah Holter, Denae 

Kautzmann and Bernice Thomas) at the August 7
th

 public hearing.  The Special 

Assessment Commission voted to table this project.  On August 14
th

 the Special 

Assessment Commission met again with City staff and City Attorney Brown.  At this 

meeting it was voted on by the Special Assessment Commission to move the project on to 

the City Commission with commission members Jacobsen and Winks voting aye and 

Holter voting naye.  See attached memo for more information on this project. 

Assessments will be certified to Morton County by November 1
st
, 2013 to be included on 

December 2013 Tax Statements. 

 

City Staff, City Attorney Brown and Commissioner Tibke met on September 27, 2013 to 

discuss DeNae Kautzmann and Deb Holter’s concerns on their specials.  City staff had 

written comments to address Ms. Holter and Ms. Kautzmann’s written concerns brought 

up at the last City Commission meeting on September 17th.  Ms. Holter indicated that she 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 27, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Special Assessments 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Kim Fettig, Project Manager 

SUBJECT: Confirmation of special assessments for Street 

Improvement District #148. 

 

  

Old Business No. 1 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:   October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Confirmation of Special Assessments for Street Improvement District #148. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

would like to respond to the staff’s written comments.   Commissioner Tibke asked for 

Ms. Holter’s written comments to be submitted by Monday September 30
th

 for each 

commissioner’s review prior to the October 1
st
 City Commission meeting. 

                                                                     

ATTACHMENTS:  1.  Written responses to DeNae Kautzmann and Deb Holter’s     

                                      comments.     

                                 2.   Copy of the special assessment list and map of the respective                           

                                       district and memo to City Commissioners.   

   

FISCAL IMPACT:  Total Amount Assessed:  

  

         Street Improvement District #148 - ($967,489.29) 

           Years Assessed:  15 

           Interest Rate:  5.1475% 

           No Interest Charged for the First Year 

 

STAFF IMPACT:    maximum     

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I would recommend the proposed assessments as confirmed by 

the Special Assessment Commission be certified on this project.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the special assessments for certification on 

Street Improvement District #148.   



Following attachment is the comments from 
Denae Kautzmann and Deb Holter with City 
Staff's comments inserted in bold and italics 
that was given to Ms. Kautzmann and Ms. 
Holter at the September 21h meeting. 



To: Greg Welch 
City of Mandan 

From: Deborah Holter 
PO Box 483 
Mandan, ND 58554 

RE: Special Assessment District #148 
Notice of Objection and Appeal of Special Assessment NDCC 
40-23-14 Mandan City Commission meeting September 17, 
2013 

1587 1101 Crying Hill Dr $1067.08 
1480 Third StNE $931.03 
1486 Third St NE $931.03 
1490 Third St NE $931.03 

And any other assessments charged to me in this special assessment district. 

I own the above cited property within special assessment district # 148 and am a member 
of the Special Assessment Commission (SAC). I did not take part in the determination of 
these assessments in this district except to vote move the matter forward. I am appealing the 
assessments made on my properties as inequitable, arbitrary and in excess of the benefit to my 
properties. Further these same issues apply to a number of other properties in the district and 
should be corrected. 

This appeal is before the City Commission as a result of the engineering department 
repeatedly failing to provide me with the information it used to determine the dollar amount of 
these assessments. Most of the information on which this appeal is based was not obtained until 
the day of the SAC public meeting to hear property owners objections prior to certifying these 
assessments to this Commission for today's meeting. At the beginning of that SAC public 
meeting, the SAC chairman made it clear that he was going to certify these assessments as 
presented regardless of any objections and was verbally abusive to me as a SAC member and 
to the property owners who objected. The City has lost the tape recording of that meeting. 

Thereafter, the engineering department refused to deal with questions raised by 
this newly acquired information or answer the objections of property owners. The engineering 
department stated that the City Commission should deal with these matters. 

( 1) Properties within Special Assessment District # 148 are assessed differently and 
the engineering department has been unable to explain how the cost of the benefits to my 
specific properties were determined. My home is .8 mile from Mandan Avenue and is 
assessed $1062. Forty plus homes that are the same distance from Mandan Avenue and 
receive the same benefits are assessed $3 82 or $417. When asked to explain the difference, 
Ms. Hager repeatedly said that I could not compare apples and oranges. I would like to 
know how my property is benefitted by this project and why I am paying a greater amount 
that other property owners within the district. 



Comment in comparing apples to oranges, referenced the various elements of 
construction in this district and that a parcel of land may benefit from one item of cost 
whereby another parcel could receive benefits from up to four items of cost making it 
difficult to compare one parcel to another. 

Parcel #1587 (your home) benefits from the waterline, street and storm sewer basin 
construction. Assessments are allocated on a per lot basis. All parcels within a benefiting 
area are entered within the computer and a unit cost is determined. Assessments are 
made to large parcels by adjusting the units of cost. The property assessment as published 
on September 21, 2012 was listed as $6,079. 78 due to size of the parcel. Properties on 3rd 
Street were reduced from $1,983.48 to $931.03 (single family Lot). Assessments were 
revised on Ms. Bolter's and Ms. Kautzmann's properties after claims that the city was 
unable to provide city services to these tracts of land causing them to be unbuildable and 
that covenants existed preventing the land from being subdivided. Without proof of 
written evidence of a signed and recorded document predating the assessment district, 
these parcels should be assessed based on size and potential/or subdivision. 

Also, the assessment on my home was increased $130 just prior to publication 
with no explanation for the increase. There was a prior discussion that it was included in a 
water drainage unit to the east, but it was not increased at that time. 

In reviewing the final edit, it was apparent portions of Parcels $1563, #1563A, #1563B 
and #1587 are within the storm sewer basin and added to the assessment list. 

At the SAC hearing, Ms. Fettig stated that a topographical map"proved that"my property 
drained east onto Mandan A venue. However, the age of that map is unknown, the distance of 
several blocks of open field from my property to Mandan Avenue was not considered; there is 
a raised road on the eastern edge of my property and on the neighbor's property that does not 
appear on that map and it is of a higher elevation preventing drainage to the east and my 
property boundaries were not considered. When these issues were raised, Ms. Fettig replied 
that they could not look at the individual properties. Further, Ms. Hager stated that this would 
cause my assessment to increase only by $20, such a small amount that it didn't matter if I 
paid for a benefit that did not accrue to my property. 

No assessment increased by $20.00. The assessment for Parcel #1587 increased by 
$136.05 for storm sewer construction. 

The assessment of the home to the west was also increased in a like manner, 
apparently for the same reason and is even more unlikely to drain in that direction. 

Ms. Fettig also stated that my home was in an additional drainage district to the 
south. This is disproved by both the map used by the engineering department which 
shows the cost benefits provided to the properties (attachment 1) and the minutes of the 
public meeting wherein the engineers explained the benefits provided to the properties 
(attachment 2 is a part thereof). Further, the cost of this benefit had already been 
included in my assessment---thus I was assessed for TWICE for the same benefit and that 



benefit does not accrue to my property. 

These facts also apply to my three properties on Third Street. They are being 
assessed for be11efits not received in that they are not in the drainage basin. Also, they 
are vacant lots and do not have a primary source of water, yet they are being assessed 
for a secondary source of water and are being assessed for that unused water line at rate 
more than twice the rate of most of the rest of the district who do have a primary source 
of water and use for a secondary line. 

The eastern 213 of the northernmost and eastern ~ of the center of Ms. Kautzmann's 
properties and the northernmost 60% of Ms. Holter's property are in the Storm Sewer Basin 
B. The properties on 3rd Street are not in either storm sewer basin and are not assessed any 
costs. 

(2) The engineering department decided to assess the costs of a 16" secondary water 
line running under Mandan Avenue 70% to properties west of Mandan Avenue and 30% to 
the properties east of Mandan A venue. Even though I repeatedly asked how this 
discrepancy in benefit was determined, I was told it was an engineering decision. On the 
day of the SAC public hearing I was able to obtain the one document on which this 
decision was based and only after learning of its existence from a non-city source. 

This apportioning of cost was based on one ambiguous statement made by Tom 
Little at a public meeting on April 25, 2007. This meeting occurred prior to the 
publication of the district boundaries so there was no public notice. There is one sentence 
that could be read that the City would pay 25% of the cost of that water line and the 
remaining 70% would be special assessed. Or that sentence could be combined with the 
next partial sentence to read that there would be a 70/30 split. The next two sentences 
negate the latter reading in that they state that the estimated cost to the lots west of the 
railroad tracks (Mandan Avenue) would only be $339 while the costs on this side would 
be $337. These numbers are just estimates, but there is only a $2 difference not a 2 113 
times difference. (Attachment 2). · I have been informed by the engineering department 
that Mr. Little has declined to clarify these statements. 

On April 17, 2007 the Board of City Commissioners authorized the publication of the 
district map showing the boundaries for Street Improvement District #148. Former City 
Engineer, Tom Little gave a slide presentation on the project which indicated how the 
district was broken into quadrants along with the percentages of cost based on the benefit 
each area received from all elements of construction. The Board of City Commissioners 
voted to move forward with SID #148. On April 25, 2007 there was an open house and 
public meeting at which a formal presentation took place and again the maps showing the 
potential assessments were reviewed by all individuals present. 

The waterline costs were split 70% to the west of Mandan Avenue and 30% to the east 
side. Based on the number of parcels served by waterlines tapped directly into this new 
line, this is an appropriate proportion due to the larger number of properties west of 
Mandan Avenue. The flow of water in this new line will primarily go west. The cost to 
property owners to the west of Mandan Avenue for the waterline was $502.84 and to those 



east of Mandan Avenue was $228.51. Property owners east of Mandan Avenue did not pay 
for the pipe on the Mandan Avenue waterline, only for a stub in for their newly constructed 
line off of Division St. 

When assessing the costs for the street construction, in order for the east side to 
receive any benefit from Mandan Avenue, it was necessary to construct a portion of 
Division Street NE for Eastwood Acres area and a new entrance off of Division St NE for 
the Riverbend Additions in order to gain access to Mandan A venue. These areas main 
access is off of Missouri Drive onto I-94 and Main Street. 

The remaining document speaks to the benefits this water line provides to the lots 
east of Mandan A venue, not to the lots west of Mandan A venue and that another (?) 
16" water line would be divided 25% to the city and the remaining 75% EQUALLY 
assessed to the property owners. 

The properties west of Mandan A venue have been assessed more than twice as much 
for the cost of this water line as those east of Mandan A venue when the benefit is the 
same or even greater for the those properties to the east. This clearly violates North 
Dakota statutes. . 

(3) Even though the boundaries of Special Assessment Districts #147, #148 and 
#52 are the same; the property assessments of each district must be determined 
separately based upon the benefit derived from that district only. The engineering 
department did not do this. It took into account the costs already assessed to 
homeowners in Districts #147 and #52 in determining the cost of the assessments in 
# 148. This caused some property owners in District # 148 to pay more and some less 
than their fair share. 

Each district was assessed separately. In order to get services and sufficient 
capacity, property owners in Water and Sewer Improvement District #52 still needed to 
connect to the waterline installed as part of SID #148 and were assessed accordingly, 
thus the difference between the 70% cost vs. 30% cost ($502.84 vs. $228.51). 

(4) In addition to lessening some property owners District # 148 assessments 
because of assessments they paid other districts for benefits conferred by those 
districts, the City did not apply District #148 costs equally throughout the District 
# 148 as required by statue. Some District # 148 property owners their # 148 assessments 
lessened by both actions. 

Street Improvement District #148 had several components that had different benefit 
areas. This caused different assessment amounts for properties based on whether or not 
they benefited from each component of SID #148. The benefit area for the road 
improvements was divided into 6 separate areas with different assessment percentages. 
The total number of parcels assessed for road improvements was 426, 386 parcels were 
for water improvements, 5 parcels were assessed for sanitary sewer improvements, 8 
parcels were assessed for storm sewer Basin B and 75 parcels were assessed for storm 



sewer Basin A. 

Attachment 1 is the map the engineering department used to determine the 
individual assessments for Districts #147, #148 and #52. It shows the common outside 
boundary of these districts. That large area was divided into smaller areas. Each 
smaller area has an estimated cost of the benefit accrued within that area of the 
three special assessment districts COMBINED. The cost benefit of the individual 
special assessment districts cannot be separated. It is not known what information was 
used to divide the boundary area into smaller areas or how the cost benefit of each area 
was determined. 

A professional engineer having the knowledge and understanding of the 
workings of the city's water system and traffic flows on roadways determined the 
logic to generate original estimates. This logic was found to be reasonable and was 
used as a guide in spreading the costs. 

When comparing the actual District # 148 assessments with the estimated cost of 
benefit confened; the Riverbend Area and the Eastwood Acres Area are assessed 
hundreds less than the estimate. Tesoro Refinery and the Mandan Cemetery are assessed 
several thousand less than the estimate. The amounts for the Industrial Park Area, the 
sewer area west of Mandan A venue and the green area west of Mandan A venue were 
not calculated because of lack of information. However the remaining property owners 
west of Mandan A venue are assessed several hundred and, in the case of at least one 
property owner, several thousand, more than the estimated benefit. When asked to 
explain the discrepancy, Ms. Hager stated that the map showed only estimates, and did 
not have to be followed and she was happy that many of the assessments were lower. 
She did not explain why others were higher. This is especially egregious in that the 
estimates are for the three special districts combined and the property owners paying a 
higher assessment were benefitted by only one district while the property owners 
paying a lower assessment were benefitted by two or three districts. 

All areas on the map do indicate original estimates. These estimates can bear 
change due to actual bids and change orders after the bid. 

The property owners deserve an explanation of why they are paying hundreds more 
than the original estimated benefit and Tesoro is paying almost $7000 less. I am also 
curious why the pastureland laying largely to the west of Mandan A venue with a 
small part abutting Mandan Avenue is assessed 6 times (an additional $120,000 at 
least )more than Tesoro or the Mandan Cemetery. How much does area figure into 
the benefit determination? Future benefit vs present benefit? 

Tesoro's original estimate was $36,477.03 and proposed assessment is 
$32,555.01. This amount equals 7.69% of the total street construction costs as the 
determined benefit to the area. Within the Mandan Union Cemetery area costs are 3 
tracts of land - the assessments combined for the waterline and street construction 
equals $39,598. 75 being above the original estimate. 

Wetzstein 's property benefits both from the waterline and street construction 



and is also within the storm basin. Assessments for specific parcels are based on 
best and highest land usage regardless of present use. Size, location and benefits the 
property receives are major components in allocating costs to these lands. 

Costs are assessed to the District that should be assessed to the city as a whole. The 
asphalt trail that runs from Third Street NE north to the end of the assessment area is 
part of a comprehensive walking trail and should be assessed to the Park District. 
This is referred to repeatedly in the above cited transcript of the public hearing held 
April 25 and contemporary newspaper articles. 

The Park District is assessed for the Park (City Parcel ID 1376 on assessment 
list). The bike path was built in lieu of a sidewalk to satisfy the requirement by 
NDDOT for pedestrian access. The cost of construction of an asphalt bike path is 
comparable to the cost of construction of a concrete sidewalk. When the right-of
way is wide enough to permit it, construction of a multi-use path separated from the 
roadway sU1face is safer than a narrower sidewalk along the side of the roadway. 

(5) Costs are assessed to the District that should be assessed to the abutting 
property owners. The retaining walls on Mandan A venue north of Third Street NE 
benefit the abutting property owners and should not be paid for by the entire District. 
Although an argument may be made for the homeowner not bearing the entire cost, this 
is not true of the vacant lot adjacent. Much of the length of that wall is 

unnecessary: parts of the wall are higher than the land behind it that it is supposed to 
support and the city property immediately to the north does not have a retaining wall 
and the slope is higher. The steps below the Mandan sign not necessary and benefit the 
property owner only. 

When these questions were first raised, the engineering department stated that I 
could not question the individual costs contained within the project. Thereafter, my 
questions were ignored until raised by another property owner to another city 
department who suggested to the engineering department that the costs should be 
determined. One the day of the SAC public hearing, the cost was determined; but 
Ms. Fettig said that it was such a small dollar amount that even though it did not 
benefit my property or any of the other properties it would not be broken out of our 
assessments. 

Retaining walls are designed to protect the public right-of-way from erosion dumping 
mud and debris on the road surface. It is therefore a legitimate district cost. The steps 
are at the widest point of the right-of-way on that side of the road and provide access to 
the Mandan sign. There is a path from the steps to the sign. 
We have no record in our office to show that the steps were requested by Pat Atkinson. 
The retaining wall and steps were built by the block and when we looked at the difference 
between if the wall was built versus the steps what kind of impact it would have and it 
was determined to be minimal. The difference in cost was approximately 289 square feet 
@ $28. 70/s.f. = $8294.30 x 18% being the total cost of $1492.97 divided by 426 parcels= 
$3. 5 0 per parcel in special assessments. 



I apologize for the length of this document. Some of these matters/questions 
should have been dealt with before this hearing. The engineering department 
refused to do so and stated that you, as Commissioners, should deal with it. 

For all of the reasons stated, I object to the assessments for my four 
properties and, as a SAC member, for any one else who has not filed a written 
objection before you today as required by statue. I ask that the Commission allow a 
few days for anyone who, after listening to this meeting, chooses to file an objection 
be allowed to. 

Thank you for your time and attention. 



• • • 
• • 

• • • • • 

• • • • • 

.. 
;:: 

! .. ·-'· 

,_ .. · -~ 

TE.SORO REFrNERY 
$36,477.03 

MANDANrE $36 47: - METERY .. 
• ;1.03 

r I; 
}._/..,I 

PROPOSED 
DISTRICT BOPROJECT UN DARY 

-. 

I 
- . ~ :~:... ·~-.. :. ·j--

.... : ... 

·. ' 

3/19107 



Public Question But it is enlumcins Memorinl Highway wnter s1.1p17ly .... 

Response by Tom Little ok, I understand where you're coming from. 

I guess I'd recommend that you put yollr comments in writing and provide that to the City, not 
specifically to the city, Ulteig Engineering, but address it to the City, funding is not really a 
portion of the concept report, but make you're thoughts known and that goes for all of this, any 
comments or thoughts you might have on the funding, the aspects of construction, what's 
included, what's not included, make your thoughts know, please. 

Tom Little continues presentation 

OK, here we.go, into.the Y,.arfous:l~.yere§i:9~Rli1£~$:i:Jf~h~PN9l':'!~t. ~l(lngMandan·Avenue, noy.r 
we're going to have another slide for Division, but aleng Mandan A~enue, we areh~staTBng1a 
16" watet~ line; 11'\at will be tied into the water line that comes across Division, you'll se.e thatin 

-a little bit, that will be a solid line. We will be going all the way down to Main Street where 
we'll tie in to a 12" line that goes down to Twin City Drive, and a 12" line that goes down 
Memorial Highway, a 12" line on Main Street, and a 12" line on 1•1 Street. This is to bring the 
water around another direction so we can help pull through the water system in that location. 
We have a distribution system master plan going on and that 16" water li.ne was in our first 
master plan back in '77 and it's still in and highly reco~'l'.!11ended Hkectht!or\e thatisa:b~--~~ 
completed sometime in 2~~____.,.---~·· 

~-----· lP\1.e 16." water l.}{]!.f!:,~:n:tlw, the fu n-din.g .otl;that ·w-ater.-line; t:here is nO' federal fund,ing on it, i b· is a U 
loca]Jy fm1ded. The .CHy o{ IY,1~~1dan, be~use itis·a 16" water liHe, \·ve ·vvould··be picking up 25% 

•. t ....... "'- .J mk li<1"iil.;r,.~,;q'i:i;1~1!C"""'~~·~~mA-"£lllttlli.!'.t?JI~··. .. 1-'.J:.·~..:· '" ,__ ... ·. f 
~4:' !-l~1-r..~.r:~fl!!!:f!.)'4~~ \\"llJ<f.!~,,~H'IS.'c;'n'"'t'ne'OOSl''Wm:t:<iOi"Ql:!<'lJp"'~"'''~l::t$i;:~l!!J;~f'.'~"·"''' ' . . ~lliJ~l"l~~~~ia. 
as,s~$Siflg ~pr this 16" waterJln.erV~°liJ .(!>f !l1e:~9st:'l'1.f'tf::tat 16r.t wa·t~lttirte., -n,this,avea~ the 
B\:tdington,Northern RaJtrecrd tra~l<W.~?sfal'.T; .sQ, , · o ;the;.fhtel's.taleand.3tWA·Q:f th~ar.~a t?.astq,f 
tj'le r.(liJcrqad: · tm(!~s. 'l)!!_e410$~'}).er:l"afrrel'tti 'th~'.,.wes:t.<r.tth~ •11iJb~~q ~.r:OO~$,W~1;1i~ be«$.a39 ·per " 
parc;~lt, ~"~~f~~.JJ¥~t~JI~ · ~;,,Q. x l4P• tJWpata~l,:'on,tl<tis·sMe; ts. ePf:a:,p~r.,qQµ1~.t 
bM'is however. you s.ee a nu:m'ber ef. . ge',~rews:;v. .. 11rh.av.e estit:rtat~el tit\'¢ ·nu1~~.et ~f··parc~!s; So. H; 
you <>;Wn<l lot hereod1ere, you would.be ~ayh~g;JfQ:rthewat~~·Ul:i~.GL'i .Ma111:dcan.A.vemue . .aJ$337, 
p!t1;,pa:rc~lii 

Moving on to the storm sevver, as indicated earlier, there nre 3 meas of 3· different divisions of 
the wuter line. The stom1 sewer for direct!}' l:ienefiting Mandan Avenue has been incorporated. 

The cost of that hos been incorporated into the cost of the streets. So you'll se;~e, well, you won't 

see those m,tmbers but they are a part of the street construction. However, been use of the 

flooding cnused by th<lt area contributi11g water to Mandah Avenue, we have a 60% fedt~ral cost 
participation 7.S'X> state, 32.5%) local. Of that locril share, \·Ve hnve '15.4 with the property h1x mill 
levy; 15.4 sales tux, und 69.2'X> special assessed, Now this is a little bit different than what you 

see, but wh<it I've done is broken th<lt down a little bit more so thnl you can see it a little bit 

K: \ l'rojl'(is\2004 \304.278\ Adm in\ pt1 b\ic: nwPlini;s\ public h<!arini; 11-25-07\ Public Mcuring Summ;nv.doc 



Notice of Appeal of Assessments Special 
Assessment District # 148 

The assessments to Parcels 1563, 1563A,and 1563B are appealed for the following reasons: 

1. The special assessment exceeds the benefit which is contrary to state law. 
a) These parcels and Riverbend subdivision parcels are equal distance to Mandan 

Ave with a greater benefit to Riverbend because Mandan Ave serves this 
subdivision as the primary ingress and egress. Riverbend parcels are assessed 
approximately $600 lower than parcels 1563, 1563A, and 1563B. 

Street Improvement District #148 had several components that had 
different benefit areas. This caused different assessment amounts for 
properties based on whether or not they benefited from each component of 
SID #148. 

b) The waterline is a secondary line to the primary waterline. This waterline is of 
no benefit to Parcels l 563A and 1563B since there is no primary waterline to 
back up. 

All of these parcels are within the City's corporate limits therefore have the 
benefit of being able to connect to City water and sewer. Benefit is based 
on the potential of the property to be developed and receive city services, not 
the current condition of the property. 

c) The special assessment list is incomplete, parcels on 2nd Ave. NE were 
missed. 

Second Avenue NE is not part of this Improvement District. If Second 
Street NE was the intended reference, one parcel on 2nd Street NE was 
unbuildable and not assessed. 

d) Steps built on Pat Atkinson's property at his request solely benefit him and 
the cost should not be spread to other parcels in the Special Assessment 
District. 

Retaining walls are designed to protect the public right-of-way from 
erosion dumping mud and debris on the road surface. It is therefore a 
legitimate district cost. The steps are at the widest point of the right-of
way on that side of the road and provide access to the Mandan sign. 
There is a path from the steps to the sign. 
We have no record in our office to show that the steps were requested by 
Pat Atkinson. The retaining wall and steps were built by the block and 
when we looked at the difference between if the wall was built versus the 
steps what kind of impact it would have and it was determined to be 
minimal. The difference in cost was approximately 289 square feet @ 
$28.70/s.f. = $8294.30 x 18% being the total cost of $1492.97 divided by 
426 parcels= $3.50 per parcel in special assessments. 



e) The Park District should be assessed for the Park within the Special 
Assessment District and for the bike trail along Mandan Ave. 

The Park District is assessed for Lil Haven Park {City Parcel ID 1376 on 

assessment list). The bike path was built in lieu of a sidewalk to satisfy the 
requirement by NDDOT for pedestrian access. The cost of construction 
of an asphalt bike path is comparable to the cost of construction of a 
concrete sidewalk. When the right-of-way is wide enough to permit it, 
construction of a multi-use path separated from the roadway surface is 
safer than a narrower sidewalk along the side of the roadway. 

The Special Assessment Commission failed to follow Section 40-23-07 of the 
North Dakota Century Code because it did not levy the assessments to its just 
proportion of the total cost to be paid by special assessment. The Commission 
apportioned the cost of the Mandan Ave reconstruction and the waterline costs into 
units with separate costs which is not permissible under statute and precedent under 
ND caselaw. 

The Special Assessment Commission acted in full compliance with the 
provisions of Section 40-23-07 by assessing each parcel its fair share of the full 
cost of the improvements benefiting each parcel. The focus of 40-23-07 is on the 
requirement that parcels owned by political subdivisions are not exempt from 
being assessed. The section title is: 40-23-07. Determination of special 
assessments by commission - Political subdivisions not exempt. 

Parcels 1563A and 1563B are not buildable due to the City being unable to provide 
city services to these lots. All rights of way surrounding these lots have been 
vacated. There is no city street leading to these lots, there is no water and sewer, 
and no fire protection. The development of these parcels cannot go forward and 
therefore the lots are not buildable and should not be specially assessed. 

Our office received a letter from the City Building and Assessing office stating 
these lots are buildable. These parcels are within the City's corporate limits 
therefore having the benefit of being able to connect to City water and sewer. 
These lots are in common ownership with the adjoining lot that has public right
of-way access. Thus these lots have access to City services. These lots cannot be 
sold without providing access. Therefore these lots are capable of having city 
services provided now and in the future. 

Our objections were brought forth at the August 7, 2013 public hearing before the 
Special Assessment Commission and ignored. Our objections were not discussed 
by the Commission at the hearing or at the August 14, 2013 meeting. In fact, the 
City Attorney instructed that they need to get this to the City Commission as they 
have the final say and the Special Assessment Commission only makes suggestions. 
The Special Assessment Commission shirked its duty by failing to determine 
whether an error was made based upon the objections raised at the public hearing. 
By filing the special assessment list with the City Commission they are confirming it 
is correct. See Sections40-23-l 1, 40-23-12 NDCC. 



Notice of Appeal of Assessment, Special Assessment District #148 

The assessment to Parcel 1513 is appealed for the following reasons: 

1. The Special Assessment Commission failed to follow Section 40-23-07 of the 
North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) because it did not levy the assessment to its 
just proportion of the total cost to be paid by special assessment. The Commission 
apportioned the cost of the Mandan Ave reconstruction and the waterline costs 
into units with separate costs which is not permissible under statute and ND case 
law. 

The Special Assessment Commission acted in full compliance with the 
provisions of Section 40-23-07 by assessing each parcel its fair share of the 
full cost of the improvements benefiting each parcel. The focus of 40-23-07 
is on the requirement that parcels owned by political subdivisions are not 
exempt from being assessed. The section title is: 40-23-07. Determination 
of special assessments by commission - Political subdivisions not exempt. 

2. The special assessment exceeds the benefit which is contrary to state law. 
a) The special assessment list is incomplete, parcels on 2nd Ave. NE were 

missed. 

Second Avenue NE is not part of this Improvement District. If 
Second Street NE was what was intended in item c, there is one lot 
that is unbuildable that did not receive assessments. 

b) Steps built on Pat Atkinson's property at his request solely benefit him and 
the cost should not be spread to other parcels in the special assessment 
district. 

We have no record in our office to show that the steps were 
requested by Pat Atkinson. The retaining wall and steps was built by 
the block and when we looked at the difference between if the wall 
was built versus the steps what kind of impact it would have and it 
was determined to be minimal 

c) Park District should be assessed for the Park within the District and for the 
bike trail built on Mandan Ave. 

The Park District is assessed for Lil Haven Park (City Parcel ID 
1376 on assessment list). The bike path was built in lieu of a sidewalk to satisfy 
the requirement by NDDOT for pedestrian access. The cost of construction of an 
asphalt bike path is comparable to the cost of construction of a concrete sidewalk. 
When the right-of-way is wide enough to permit it, construction of a multi-use 
path separated from the roadway surface is safer than a narrower sidewalk along 
the side of the roadway. 

Our objections were brought forth at the August 7, 2013 public hearing before the Special 
Assessment Commission and ignored. Our objections were not discussed by the 



Commission at the hearing or at the August 14, 2013 meeting. In fact, the City Attorney 
instructed that they need to get this to the City Commission as they have the final say and 
the Special Assessment Commission only makes suggestions. The Special Assessment 
Commission abdicated its duty by failing to determine whether an error was made based 
upon the objections raised at the public hearing. By filing the special assessment list with 
the City Commission they are confirming it is correct. See Sections 40-23-11 and 40-23-
12 NDCC. 



NOTICE OF HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #148 

Notice is Hereby Given, that the Special Assessment Commission of the City of Mandan, 
North Dakota will meet at Mandan City Hall, 205 2nd Avenue NW on August 07, 2013 at 
6:00 p.m. to hear objections which may be made to any of the foregoing assessments in 
Street Improvement District #148 as shown in the foregoing list by any person interested 
or his agent or attorney. 

Phyllis Hager 

NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #148 
We the undersigned, constituting the Special Assessment Commission of the City of 
Mandan, do hereby certify that the following is a true and correct list of the particular lots 
and tracts of land which, in the opinion of the Commission, are especially benefited by the 
construction performed in Street Improvement District # 148 of the City of Mandan, 
showing the amount against each lot or tract, the same is a true and correct assessment of 
the property therein described to the best judgment of the members of the Commission. 
The items of expense in said improvement district and the assessments are as follows, to
wit. 

Seq# Lot 

Construction 
Engineering, Legal, Admin., Insp. 
& Construction Interest 
Bonding Costs 
Less Federal, State and/or City 
Funding 
Amount to be Assessed 

Blk Address 

HELMS WORTH-MCLEAN 1 ST 
1160 1 &2 1 8111 STNE 
1161 3 & 4 1 109 8 A VE NE 
1162 5&6 1 1078AVENE 

$5,230,406.07 

156,011.46 
54,399.60 

(4,473,327.84) 
$967,489.29 

Amount Assessed 

931.03 
931.03 
931.03 

1163 7-18 1 710 E MAIN ST 2, 793.10 
931.03 1164 19 & S 1/2 of20 1 106 6 AVE NE 

1165 Nl/2of20&21 1 1086AVENE 
1166 22 & S 8' of 23 1 110 6 A VE NE 
1167 N 17' of 23 & 24 1 112 6 A VE NE 
1168 E 50' of 1-3 2 911 1 ST NE 
1169 E 50' of 4-6 2 107 9 A VE NE 
1170 W 50' ofE 100' of 1-6 2 909 1 ST NE 
1171 W 50' of 1-6 2 907 1 ST NE 
1172 7-9 & S 90' ofE 21' & N 40' ofE 19' of 10 

2 820 E MAIN ST 

1, 862.06 
931.03 
931.03 
931.03 
931.03 
931.03 
931.03 

1,862.06 



1174 W 4' of S 90' of 10 & W 6' ofN 40' of 10 & 11-18 
2 814 E MAIN ST 1,862.06 

1175 E 40' of 19-24 & W 1 O' ADJ ALLEY 
2 905 1 STNE 931.03 

1176 E 50' ofW 100' 19-24 2 903 1 STNE 931.03 
1177 W 50' of 19-21 2 106 8 AVE NE 931.03 
1178 W 50' of22-24 2 110 8 AVE NE 931.03 
1179 E 50' of 1-3 3 10111 STNE 931.03 
1180 E 50' of 4-6 3 107 lOAVENE 931.03 
1181 W 50' of E 100' of 1-6 & Nl/2 ofE/W vac alley-500 sq ft. 

3 1009 1 ST NE 931.03 
1182 W 40' of 1-6 & Nl/2 E/W vac alley-400 sq ft. 

3 1007 1 ST NE 931.03 
1183 7-13 & S 1 /2 E/W vac alley adj to 9-12/900 sq ft. 

3 1006 E MAIN ST 2,793.10 
1187 14-18 3 1000 E MAIN ST 1,862.06 
1188 19 & 20 3 106 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1189 21 & 22 3 108 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1190 W 81' of23 & 24 3 1001 1 ST NE 931.03 
1191 E 59' of23 & 24 

,, 
1005 1 ST NE 931.03 .) 

1192 1-3 4 111 11 AVE NE 1,862.06 
1193 4-6 4 10711 AVE NE 1,862.06 
1194 7-16 4 1120 E MAIN ST 2,793.10 
1195 17 & 18 4 1100 E MAIN ST 1,862.06 
1196 19 & 20 4 10610 AVE NE 931.03 
1197 21 & 22 4 108 lOAVENE 931.03 
1198 E 70' of23 & 24 4 1105 1 STNE 931.03 
1199 W 70' of23 & 24 4 110 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1200 1-6 5 10712 AVE NE 1,862.06 
1203 7-10 & E 18'of 11 5 1210 E MAIN ST 1,862.06 
1205 11-18 (less E 18' of 11) 5 1200 E MAIN ST 1,862.06 
1206 19 & 20 5 10611 AVE NE 931.03 
1207 21 & 22 5 10811 AVE NE 931.03 
1208 23 &24 5 110 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1210 1-3 6 1311 1 ST NE 3,457.44 
1211 4 & N 8' of5 6 10713 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1212 S 17' of 5 & 6 6 105 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1213 7&8 6 1310 E MAIN ST 3,457.44 
1215 9& 10 6 1308 E MAIN ST 3,457.44 
1216 11-18 ,r 1300 E MAIN ST 4,255.13 0 

1217 19 & 20 6 10612 AVE NE 3,457.44 
1218 21 & 22 6 10812 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1219 23 &24 6 110 12 AVE NE 3,457.44 
1220 22-24 & Wl/2 vac alley 

7 105 MANDAN AVE NE 3,457.44 



1220A PTS of 14-16 &17-21 & PTS ofN/S & E/W vac alleys 
7 1400 E MAIN ST 5,186.17 

1221 1-6 8 9460 5,493.03 
1223 1-6 9 9462 5,493.03 
1228 Part of7 & 8 9 1406 1 ST NE 3,457.44 
1230 9-16 9 1406 1 ST NE 4,255.13 
1238 17 & 18 9 1400 1 ST NE 3,457.44 
1239 19 & 20 9 206 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1240 21 & S 13.7' of 22 9 208 13 AVE NE 3,457.44 
1241 N 11.3' of22 & 23 & 24 

9 210 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1242 1&2 10 211 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1243 3&4 IO 209 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1244 5&6 10 20713AVENE 2,526.41 
1245 7&8 IO 20113AVENE 2,526.41 
1246 9 & 10 IO 1308 1 ST NE 2,526.41 
1247 11 & 12 10 1306 1 ST NE 2,526.41 
1248 13 & 14 10 1304 1 ST NE 2,526.41 
1249 15 & 16 IO 1302 1 ST NE 3,457.44 
1250 17 & 18 10 1300 1 STNE 2,526.41 
1252 19-22 IO 208 12 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1253 23 &24 IO 2IO 12 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1254 W70' of 1 &2 11 1207 2 STNE 931.03 
1255 E 70' of 1 & 2 11 21112 AVE NE 931.03 
1256 3&4 11 20912AVENE 931.03 
1257 5&6 11 20712 AVE NE 931.03 
1259 7-8-9 11 1208 1 ST NE 931.03 
1260 10 & 11 11 12061 STNE 931.03 
1261 12 & 13 11 1204 1 ST NE 931.03 
1262 14 & 15 11 1202 1 ST NE 931.03 
1263 16-18 11 1200 I ST NE 931.03 
1266 19 11 206 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1267 20 11 208 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1268 21 & 22 11 210 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1269 23 &24 11 212 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1270 1&2 12 21111 AVE NE 931.03 
1271 3&4 12 20911 AVE NE 931.03 
1272 5&6 12 20711 AVE NE 931.03 
1273 7&8 12 11IO1 ST NE 931.03 
1274 9 & 10 12 1108 1 STNE 931.03 
1275 11 & 12 1,., 

l L.. 1106 1 ST NE 1,862.06 
1276 13 & 14 12 1104 1 STNE 931.03 
1277 15 & 16 12 1102 1 ST NE 931.03 
1278 s 112 17 & 18 12 1100 1 STNE 931.03 
1279 N 112 17 & 18 12 202 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1280 19 & S 15' of20 12 204 10 AVE NE 931.03 



1281 N 10' of20 & 21 12 20610 AVE NE 931.03 
1282 22 & S 6' of23 12 208 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1283 N 19' of23 & 24 12 210 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1284 1&2 13 211 lOAVENE 931.03 
1285 3&4 13 209 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1286 5&6 13 20710 AVE NE 931.03 
1287 7 13 1014 1 ST NE 931.03 
1288 8&9 13 1012 1 ST NE 931.03 
1289 N 45' of 10 & 11 & S 85' of W 112of11& all of 12 & 13 & E 1/2of14 

13 1008 1 ST NE 3,724.13 
1290 S 85' of 10 & S 85' of El/2of11 

13 1010 1 ST NE 931.03 
1293 W 10' of S 65' of 14 & Sl/2of15 

13 1004 1 ST NE 931.03 

1294 Wl/2of14 & Nl/2of15 (less W 10' OF Sl/2) 
13 1004 112 1 ST NE 931.03 

1295 16 & 17 13 1002 1 ST NE 931.03 
1296 18 13 1000 1 ST NE 931.03 
1297 19& 20 13 206 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1298 21 & 22 13 208 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1299 23 &24 13 1001 2 ST NE 931.03 
1300 1 14 213 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1301 2 14 211 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1302 3&4 14 209 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1303 5&6 14 207 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1304 7&8 14 2019AVENE 1,862.06 
1305 9& 10 14 908 1 STNE 931.03 
1306 11 & 12 14 9061 STNE 931.03 
1307 13 & 14 & Part of 15 14 9041 STNE 931.03 
1308 15 & 16(less dr. way) 14 902 1 ST NE 931.03 
1309 17 & 18 14 900 1 STNE 931.03 
1310 19 & 20 14 206 8 AVE NE 931.03 
1311 21 & 22 14 208 8AVENE 931.03 
1312 23 &24 14 210 8 AVE NE 931.03 
1314 2-6 & 16 & 17 & vac street area 

15 9540 1,862.06 
1315 7-15 15 200 6AVENE 2,793.10 
1317 1-6 & W 1/2 vac 8 Ave NE & S 1h Vac 3 ST NE & E 1h Vac 7 Ave NE 

16 309 8 AVE NE 2,793.10 
1318 7&8 1 r 301 8 AVE NE 931.03 10 

1319 9 & 10 16 808 2 STNE 931.03 
1320 11 & 12 16 806 2 STNE 931.03 
1321 1 & 2 & S 15' vac 3 Street NE 

17 309 9AVENE 931.03 



1322 3&4 17 3079 AVE NE 931.03 
1323 5&6 17 305 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1324 7-10 17 910 2 STNE 931.03 
1326 11 & 12 17 906 2 STNE 931.03 
1327 13 & 14 17 904 2 ST NE 931.03 
1328 15 & 16 17 902 2 STNE 931.03 
1329 17 & 18 17 9002 STNE 931.03 
1330 19-22 & E 112 vac 8 Ave NE & S Yz Vac 3 Street NE 

17 310 8 AVE NE 931.03 
1331 E 70' of 1 & 2 18 31110 AVE NE 931.03 
1332 W 70' of 1 & 2 18 1007 3 STNE 931.03 
1333 3&4 18 30910 AVE NE 931.03 
1334 W 45' of5 & 6 18 307 112 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1335 E 95' of5 & 6 18 307 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1336 7 & 8 (less W 5'of 8) 18 1010 2 STNE 931.03 
1337 W 5' of 8 & 9-10 18 1008 2 ST NE 931.03 
1338 11 & 12 18 1006 2 ST NE 931.03 
1339 13 & 14 18 1004 2 ST NE 931.03 
1340 15 & 16 18 1002 2 STNE 931.03 
1341 17 & 18 18 1000 2 STNE 931.03 
1342 19 & 20 18 306 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1343 21 & 22 18 308 9AVENE 931.03 
1344 23 18 1005 3 ST NE 931.03 
1344A 23A 18 1003 3 ST NE 931.03 
1344B 24 18 1001 3 STNE 931.03 
1345 1&2 19 311 11 AVE NE 931.03 
1346 3&4 19 30911 AVE NE 931.03 
1347 5&6 19 30711 AVE NE 931.03 
1349 7 & 8(less15Xl 5 of 8) 19 1110 2 STNE 931.03 
1350 9 & 10 & E 2' of 11 19 1108 2 STNE 931.03 
1351 W23'of11&12&Ell 1/2'ofl3 

19 1106 2 ST NE 931.03 
1352 W13 112' of 13 & 14-15 19 1104 2 ST NE 931.03 
1353 N50'of16-18 19 30410 AVE NE 2,327.58 
1354 S 80' of 16 & S 80' ofE 15'of 17 

19 1102 2 STNE 931.03 
1356 19 & 20 19 306 10 AVE NE 931.03 
1357 21 & 22 19 308 lOAVENE 931.03 
1358 23 &24 19 31010 AVE NE 931.03 
1359 E 112of1 & 2 20 31112 AVE NE 931.03 
1360 W 1/2 of l & 2 & E 20 1207 3 STNE 2,526.41 

15' of vac ... etc. 
1361 3-6 20 309 12 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1362 7 & 8 (less W 8'of 8) 20 1210 2 STNE 2,526.41 
1363 W 8' of 8 & 9-10 20 1208 2 STNE 2,526.41 



1364 11 & 12 20 1206 2 ST NE 2,526.41 
1365 13-20 20 1202 2 STNE 3,324.10 
1366 E 1/2 of21-24 & W 5' ofvac. alley 

20 1203 3 STNE 2,526.41 
1367 W 1/2 of21-24 20 310 11 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1368 1&2 21 31113 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1369 3&4 21 309 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1370 5&6 21 305 13 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1371 7&8 21 1310 2 ST NE 2,526.41 
1372 9 & 10 21 1308 2 STNE 2,526.41 
1373 11 & 12 21 1306 2 ST NE 2,526.41 
1374 13 & 14 21 1304 2 STNE 2,526.41 
1375 15 & 16 21 1302 2 ST NE 2,526.41 
1376 17 & 18 21 30012AVENE 2,526.41 
1377 19 & 20 21 30612 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1378 21 & 22 21 308 12 AVE NE 2,526.41 
1379 23 &24 21 1301 3 STNE 2,526.41 
1380 1-14 & 1-22& blk 23 (less road &10' vac. alley) 

22 1500 2 ST NE 29,994.75 
1381 15 & 16 & 10' vac. alley 

22 1402 2 ST NE 3,457.44 
1382 17 & 18 & 10' vac alley 

22 1400 2 ST NE 3,457.44 
1383 19-21 & 1 O' vac. alley 22 30613 AVE NE 3,457.44 
1386 22-24 & 1 O' vac. alley 22 310 13 AVE NE 3,457.44 
1391 1-6 & vac portion of alley & streets 

24 9599 5,850.50 
1393 7-11 24 1504 3 ST NE 3,324.10 
1394 12 & 13 24 1502 3 STNE 2,526.41 
1395 14 & 15 & vac. Pt alley & vac. Pt 14 Ave NE 

24 1500 3 ST NE 2,526.41 
1407 1-6 & All vac. Streets & alley 

25 9600 5,983.85 
1413 7-9 & All vac. Streets & alleys 

25 1410 3 ST NE 3,324.10 
1415 10-24 & All vac. Streets & alleys 

25 1400 3 ST NE 8,510.26 
1431 S 10' of3 & All 4-6 & W Yz vac.13 Ave. NE & N Yz vac. alley 

26 405 13 AVE NE 3,324.10 
1432 7-9 & S 112 vac. Alley & W Yz vac.13 Ave. NE 

26 13123STNE 3,324.10 
1433 10-13 & S 1/2 vac. alley 

26 1304 3 STNE 2,526.41 
1434 14 & 15 & E Yz of 16 & S Yz vac. alley 

26 1302 3 STNE 2,526.41 



1435 W 1/2of16 & all of 17 & 18 & S Y2 vac. alley 
26 1300 3 STNE 2,526.41 

1436 19-21 & S 10' of22 & N Yz & W Y2 vac. alley 
26 406 12 AVE NE 2,526.41 

1462 7-10 27 1218 3 ST NE 6,250.54 
1466 11-15 27 1210 3 STNE 7,048.23 
1471 16-18 27 1202 3 ST NE 2,526.41 
1480 15-18 28 1101 CRYING HILL DR NE 931.03 
1486 7-10 28 1110 3 STNE 931.03 
1490 11-14 28 11203STNE 931.03 
1510 7&8 29 1010 3 STNE 931.03 
1511 9 & 10 29 1008 3 STNE 931.03 
1512 11 & 12 29 1006 3 ST NE 931.03 
1513 13-18 29 1000 3 STNE 5,586.19 
1519 19 &20 29 408 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1520 21 & 22 29 410 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1521 23 &24 29 412 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1522 1 & 2 & vacated pt of public right-of-way ( 4,934 sq. ft.) 

30 409 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1523 3&4 30 407 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1524 5&6 30 405 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1525 N 65' of 7-12 30 403 9 AVE NE 931.03 
1526 7-12 (less N 65') & N 65'vac. 3 ST NE 

30 401 9 AVE NE 931.08 
1563 3 AUD Plat "A" 32 1001 CRYING HILL DR NE 1,067.08 
1563A 1 AUD Plat "A" 43 999 1,067.08 
1563B 2 & 4 AUD Plat "A" 43 999 1,203.12 

1587 1-12 & S2 vac. 5 ST NE & W2 vac. 11 Ave NE & N2 vac. 4 ST NE & vac. parts 
of alley etc. 33 1101 CRYING HILL DR NE 1,067.08 

1659 1-24 & all vacated streets & alleys 
36 9635 4,927.25 

1683 1-6 & 19-24 (less access parcel R/W) 
37 9636 

1683A 7-18 & part ofvac. 14 Ave adj. of 18 37 9636B 

N.P. lST 
4166 3-6 

MANDAN PROPER (OT) 
3512 1-4 

RIVERBEND lST 
5554 1 
5555 2 
5556 3 

59 

1 
1 
1 

8282A 

3006AVENE 

1800 RIVER DR NE 
1708 RIVER DR NE 
1704 RIVER DR NE 

3,860.18 
3,860.18 

1,862.06 

931.03 

382.07 
382.07 
382.07 



5557 4 1 1700 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5558 5 1 1612 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5559 6 1 1608 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5560 7 & N 10' of8 1 1604 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5561 8 (less N 1 O') 1 1600 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5562 9 1 1512 RIVER DR NE 382.07 

RIVERBEND lST 
5563 10 1 1508 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5564 1 2 1713 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5565 2 2 1709 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5566 3 2 1705 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5567 4 2 1701 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5568 5 2 1613 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5569 6 2 1609 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5570 7 2 1605 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5571 8 2 1601 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5572 9 2 1517 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5573 10 2 1513 RIVER DR NE 382.07 
5574 11 2 1509 RIVER DR NE 382.07 

EASTS IDE 
761 E 80' of 1 1 1708 2 STNE 417.78 
762 w 70'1 & 2 1 1706 2 STNE 417.78 
763 3 1 1702 2 STNE 417.78 
764 4 1 1614 2 ST NE 417.78 
765 5 1 1610 2 STNE 417.78 
766 E 72' of 1 2 17112 STNE 417.78 
766A W 78' of 1 2 1709 2 STNE 417.78 
767 2 2 1707 2 STNE 417.78 
768 3 (less W 75') 2 1705 2 STNE 417.78 
769 W 75' of3 & E 30' of 4 

2 1703 112 2 ST NE 417.78 
770 4 (less E 30') 2 1703 2 STNE 417.78 
771 5 2 1701 2 STNE 417.78 

EASTWOOD TERRACE 
7800 IA 1 405 SHADY LN NE 417.78 
7802 3 1 1800 3 STNE 417.78 
7803 4 1 1716 3 STNE 417.78 
7804 1 "' 310 SHADY LNNE 417.78 L 

7805 Tract A of2 2 313 MISSOURI DR NE 417.78 
7805A S 55' of2 2 311 MISSOURI DR NE 417.78 
7806 3 2 301 MISSOURI DR NE 417.78 
7807 4 2 1802 2 STNE 417.78 
7808 5 2 300 SHADY LN NE 417.78 



7809 1 & 2 (less E 8'of 2) 3 210 SHADY LNNE 417.78 
7811 3 & E 8' of2 3 1901 2 ST NE 607.06 
7812 4 3 1905 2 ST NE 417.78 
7813 5 3 200 SHADY LNNE 1,671.13 
7814 6 3 200 SHADY LN NE 1,671.13 

DENISON'S IND PARK 1 ST 
7721 1 1 1901 MANDAN AVE NE 5,819.76 
7722 1 2 1801 MANDAN A VE NE 1,939.92 
7723 2 2 102617 STNE 1,939.92 
7724 3 & E 71' of 4 2 1016 17 STNE 1,939.92 
7725 4 (less E 71 ') 2 1000 17 STNE 1,939.92 
7726 5 2 928 17 STNE 1,939.92 
7727 6 2 914 17 ST NE 1,939.92 
7728 7 2 900 17 STNE 1,939.92 
7730 1-4 3 1701 MANDAN AVE NE 3,879.84 
7733 5&6 3 1000 16 STNE 2,909.88 
7735 7 3 928 16 STNE 1,939.92 
7736 8 3 914 16 ST NE 1,939.92 
7737 9 

,.., 
900 16 STNE 1,939.92 .) 

7738 10 3 90117STNE 1,939.92 
7739 11 

,.., 
915 17 STNE 1,939.92 .) 

7740 12 & 13 3 92917 STNE 2,909.88 
7742 14 3 1017 17 ST NE 1,939.92 
7743 15 3 102717 STNE 1,939.92 
7745 16 & 17 3 1709 MANDAN A VE NE 2,909.88 
7746 1-4 4 1101 16 ST NE 4,849.80 
7750 5 4 102716 STNE 1,939.92 
7751 6 4 1017 16 ST NE 1,939.92 
7752 7 4 1001 16 STNE 1,939.92 
7753 8 4 929 16 STNE 1,939.92 
7754 9 4 915 16 ST NE 1,939.92 
7755 10 4 901 16 ST NE 1,939.92 

EASTWOOD ACRES 1 ST 
772 1 1 1712 1 STNE 417.78 
773 2 1 1710 1 ST NE 417.78 
774 3 1 1708 1 ST NE 417.78 
775 4 1 1706 1 STNE 417.78 
776 5 1 17041 STNE 417.78 
,..,,..,,.., / ' 1702 1 STNE 417.78 I I I 0 l 

778 7 1 1700 1 STNE 417.78 
779 8 1 1701 1 STNE 417.78 
780 9 1 1703 1 ST NE 417.78 
781 10 1 1705 1 STNE 417.78 
782 11 1 1707 1 STNE 417.78 



783 12 1 1709 1 STNE 417.78 
784 13 1 1711 1 ST NE 417.78 
785 14 1 1713 1 STNE 417.78 

EASTWOOD ACRES 2ND 
786 1 1 1724 4 STNE 417.78 
787 2 1 1722 4 STNE 417.78 
788 3 1 1720 4 STNE 417.78 
789 4 1 17184STNE 417.78 
790 5 1 1716 4 STNE 417.78 
791 6 1 1714 4 STNE 417.78 
792 7 1 1712 4 ST NE 417.78 
793 8 1 1710 4 STNE 417.78 
794 9 1 1708 4 STNE 417.78 
795 10 1 1706 4 STNE 417.78 
796 11 1 1704 4 STNE 417.78 
797 12 1 1702 4 STNE 417.78 
798 13 1 1700 4 STNE 417.78 
799 14 1 409 16 AVE NE 417.78 
800 15 1 407 16 AVE NE 417.78 
801 16 1 405 16 AVE NE 417.78 
803 2 2 1721 4 STNE 417.78 
804 3 2 1719 4 STNE 417.78 
805 4 2 1717 4 ST NE 417.78 
806 5 2 1715 4 STNE 417.78 
807 6 2 1713 4 STNE 417.78 
808 7 2 1711 4 STNE 417.78 
809 8 2 1709 4 STNE 417.78 
810 9 2 1707 4 STNE 417.78 
811 10 2 1705 4 STNE 417.78 
812 11 2 1703 4 STNE 417.78 

EASTWOOD ACRES 3RD 
813 1 1 109 SHADY LN NE 417.78 
814 2 1 107 SHADY LN NE 417.78 
815 3 1 105 SHADYLNNE 417.78 
816 4 1 103 SHADY LN NE 417.78 

EASTWOOD ACRES 4TH 
819BA 1(lessN191' & E 105.23') 

1 l 706A E MAIN ST 2,506.70 1 

819BB S 110' ofN 191' of 1(lessE105.23') 
1 l 706B E MAIN ST 2,506.70 

819BC N 81' of 1 (less E 105 .23 ') 
1 l 706C E MAIN ST 417.78 



820 E 105' of I (less N 146') & 2 
1 1710 E MAIN ST 1,253.35 

821 3 1 1708 E MAIN ST 417.78 
822 4 1 1704 E MAIN ST 1,253.35 
823 5 1 1702 E MAIN ST 1,253.35 
824 6 1 1700 E MAIN ST 1,253.35 

N.P. LEASE 
5180 Lease #BF47869 1005 E MAIN ST 2,793.10 
5187 Lease #4054 725 8 805 E MAIN ST 2,793.10 
5196 Lease# BF35394 1121 E MAIN ST 4,655.16 
5201 Lease #40548261 905 E MAIN ST 3,724.13 

KASPER 
2235 2 1 1714 3 STNE 417.78 
2236 

,.., 
1 1712 3 STNE 417.78 .) 

2237 4 1 1710 3 STNE 417.78 
2238 5 1 1708 3 STNE 417.78 
2239 6 1 1706 3 STNE 417.78 
2240 7 1 1704 3 STNE 417.78 
2241 8 1 1702 3 STNE 417.78 
2242 9 1 1700 3 STNE 417.78 
2243 1 2 311 SHADY LN NE 417.78 
2244 2 2 1715 3 STNE 417.78 
2245 3 2 1713 3 STNE 417.78 
2246 4 2 1711 3 ST NE 417.78 
2247 5 2 1709 3 STNE 417.78 
2248 6 2 1707 3 STNE 417.78 
2249 7 2 1705 3 STNE 417.78 
2250 8 2 1703 3 STNE 417.78 
2251 9 2 17013 STNE 417.78 

MANDAN LANDS 139-81 
2738 AUD 3 & 4 of SW 1/4 

23 3751A 5,731.06 
2743 PT of 4 & PT SW4 SE4 

23 1501 RIVER DR NE 12,226.26 
2745 AL A S2 S2 less 4.61 A RD & less 1.76A RD 

23 3753 12,052.21 
2747 AUD 10 of SW 1/4 23 3754B 14,896.51 
2748 AUD 11 of SW 1/4 

,..,,.., 
3754C 1,001.69 L.) 

2749 SW4 SE4 & L 3-4 less 31.17 & R/W 11.37 etc. 
23 3755 1,001.69 

2751 PT SW4 SE4 & PT SE4 SW4 
23 3756 29,801.53 



2752 NE4 SW4 less R/W .67A less 1.59A & .235A R 
23 1600 MANDAN A VE NE 

2753 PT of 3 & PT SW4 SE4 (Reservoir) 
23 3758 

2785 Bal of LA of Aud Sub Div ofNE4 less etc. 
26 103 SHADY ACRES ST NE 

2807 N2 L V NE4(less .16A to ND;WlO' NlOO' L V) 
26 1800 E MAIN ST 

N lOO'of Y ofNEl/4 26 3783A 

26,544.85 

18,721.48 

2,271.28 

567.82 
378.55 2812 

2815 B of NE4 (less 2 & 3; less PCL 1-1 row .50A; less PCL 1-02 row .03A; less P) 
26 300 MANDAN A VE NE 48,285.28 

2816 
2817 
2822 
2823 

2 of Aud of B ofNE4 26 200 MANDAN AVE NE 9,748.16 
C ofNEl/4 26 3787 4,655.16 
AD ofNEl/4 26 3791 378.55 
AE ofNE4 S of H/W 94 (less 1 of AE & les PCL 3-1 R-0-W) 

2826 Part N2NW 4 
10451 Tract A 

EASTWOOD ACRES 5TH 
8376 1 
8377 2 
8378 3 

RIVERBEND 2ND 
8395 1 
8396 1 
8397 2 
8398 3 
8399 4 
8400 5 
8401 6 
8403 7&8 
8404 9 
8405 10 
8406 11 
8407 12 & 13 
8409 14 
8410 15 
8411 16 

BALSAMS IND PARK 3RD 

26 MISSOURI RIVER DR 
26 2826 
22 1500 HWY 1806 N 

1 101 SHADY ACRES ST NE 
1 103 SHADY ACRES ST NE 
1 105 SHADY ACRES ST NE 

1 1801 RIVER DR NE 
2 1804 RIVER DR NE 
2 1808 RIVER DR NE 
2 1900 RIVER DR NE 
2 1904 RIVER DR NE 
2 1908 RIVER DR NE 
2 2000 RIVER DR NE 
2 2008 RIVER DR NE 
2 2100 RIVER DR NE 
2 2104 RIVER DR NE 
2 2200 RIVER DR NE 
2 2204 RIVER DR NE 
2 2208 RIVER DR NE 
2 2300 RIVER DR NE 
2 2304 RIVER DR NE 

4152 1 1 1930 MANDAN A VE NE 

HELMSWORTH-MCLEAN 2ND 
345 1 1 102 MANDAN A VE NE 

3,217.65 
107,634.15 
32,555.01 

417.78 
417.78 

1,671.13 

382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
764.14 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 
764.14 
382.07 
382.07 
382.07 

1,939.92 

8,776.94 



BALSAMS IND PARK 4TH 
206 1 1 1920 MANDAN A VE NE 

LADUCER 
208 1 1 201 MISSOURI DR NE 

SEIBEL SUBDIVISION 
1264 1 1 1602 DIVISION ST NE 
1265 1 2 1601 DIVISION ST NE 

CIRCLE 5 
216 1 1 901 OLD RED TRL NE 

MVP INDUSTRIAL PARK 
10939 1 1 1722 MANDAN A VE NE 

Witness our hands officially as said Commission this 09th day of July, 2013. 

Publish: July 19, 2013 
July 26, 2013 

Isl Carl Jacobsen 
Chairman 

Isl Keith Winks 
Member 

Isl Deborah Holter 
Member 

7,759.68 

1,892.73 

3,724.13 
7,712.57 

3,879.84 

5,819.76 



... 
• • 
• • 
• • 

DISTRICT BOUN DARY 

STREET IM PROJEC~O~~~~~T 
DISTRICT# 148 

... ..... ... ...... ...... 
...... 

...... ...... 
...... ... 



To: 
From: 
Subject: 

Date: 

Board of City Commissioners 
Phyllis Hager, Special Assessment Analyst 
Special Assessments Related to Mandan A venue & Division Street East of 
Mandan Ave 
September 10, 2013 

At the regular City Commission meeting of April 17, 2007 the Board authorized the 
publication of the district boundaries for Street Improvement District (SID) #148 
(installation of water mains, sanitary sewer, storm sewers and street construction on 
Mandan Avenue NE). Also at this meeting former City Engineer, Tom Little gave a slide 
presentation on this district. Based on his knowledge and expertise, he indicated how the 
special assessment district would be broken into quadrants along with percentages of cost 
based on the benefit each area received from all elements of construction. The Board of 
City Commissioners voted to move forward with SID #148. 

The total construction costs assessed, less federal, state and city funding were 
$967,489.29. This cost was subdivided into eleven items of cost as follows: 

Item 1 - $211,740.47 (50%) Mandan Ave. construction (area West of RR tracks) 
Item 2 - 32,555.01 (7.69%) Mandan Ave. construction (Riverbend 1st & 211

d Additions) 
Item 3 - 32,555.01 (7.69%) Mandan Ave. construction (Eastwood Acres area) 
Item 4 - 81,476.67 (19.24%) Mandan Ave. construction (MVP & Dennison's Ind. Pk) 
Item 5 - 32,555.01 (7.69%) Mandan Ave. construction (Mandan Union Cemetery) 
Item 6 - 32,555.01 (7.69%) Mandan Ave. construction (Tesoro) 
Item 7 - 256,699.75 70% waterline costs for properties West of Railroad 
Item 8 - 77,007.71 30% waterline costs (Eastwood Acres area & Riverbend Additions) 
Item 9 - 54,467.55 Sanitary Sewer (benefiting properties) 
Item 10 - 2,720.90 Storm Sewer Basin B (benefiting properties) 
Item 11 - 153,156.20 Storm Sewer Basin A (benefiting properties) 

Special assessments can be determined by either using square footage of a parcel, linear 
feet or on a per lot basis. The method used for this project because of its complexity was 
on per lot. A per lot cost is established by taking the item cost and dividing by the 
number of lots or parcels benefiting from the construction within the specific area. A 
residential lot is assigned 1 unit of cost whereby a higher factor is used for commercial 
and industrial tracts of land due to the potential for generating higher usage of the 
infrastructure. Adjustments are made to large tracts of land or undeveloped lands by 
increasing the units based upon the land's best and highest use. Some parcels of land 
received benefit from three to four items of cost. 

An open house and public hearing were held in the City Commission meeting room on 
April 25, 2007. A formal presentation took place and again the maps showing the 
potential assessments were viewed by all individuals present. According to all meeting 
minutes, no one present refuted the logic used to determine the estimated assessments for 
specific areas within the district. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Special Assessments Related to Mandan A venue & Division Street East 
September 6, 2013 
Page 2of3 

To justify the logic used in assessing this project, the property owners east of Mandan 
A venue NE did not have access to Mandan A venue until the construction of a portion of 
Division Street NE took place in SID #147(Divison Street East of Mandan Ave). With 
the newly constructed entrance for the Riverbend Additions (SID # 14 7), the primary flow 
of traffic for this area is off Missouri Drive. Also, the east side did not receive benefit 
from the construction of the waterline on Mandan A venue until the creation of Water & 
Sewer Improvement District (WSID) #52 constructed an 8" line (assessed to the 
Eastwood Acres Subdivisions) and a 16" waterline along the portion of Division Street 
NE. The 16" waterline tied into the new 16" waterline on Mandan A venue provided a 
secondary source of water service to the east. Thus the residents to the east received 
greater benefit from these two improvements and were assessed the total construction 
costs for both projects. Only after the completion of WSID #52 and SID #147 did the 
residents to the east received any benefit from SID #148. 

The special assessment list for this project was published in 2011, 2012 and now again in 
2013. It was pulled twice because of detected errors and missing parcels. Each time the 
logic used to determine the original estimates were used in the assessing process. I and 
the Engineering Office have reviewed the logic and concurred in using this method for 
assessing - just viewing the map determined where benefits lied. To deviate would have 
created more issues as this information was presented to the public at the beginning of the 
project and there was little if any opposition to the logic. 

With the publication of SID #148, we have met opposition by two individuals being 
Denae Kautzmann and Deb Holter on how the calculations were done. Ms. Holter is a 
member of the Special Assessment Commission. It is their opinion that the assessments 
should be equal between properties on the west vs. east of Mandan A venue. This, in our 
opinion would not be based on benefit as east of Mandan A venue residents had to pay for 
the benefits received from WSID #60 and SID #147 before receiving any benefits from 
the construction of SID #148. 

There were other issues brought forth at the Special Assessment Commission (SAC) 
Public Hearing held on August 7, 2013 on SID # 148 as are stated in the attached rough 
draft of the minutes of that meeting. These minutes have not been approved by the SAC 
as Ms Holter asked us not to approve any committee minutes while she was out of town. 

A brief summary of the requests of Denae Kautzmann from the public hearing follow: 

a) As to Pat Atkinson paying for the steps constructed on his property and the bike 
trail being paid by the Park District, these costs remain within the project paid by 
property owners within the district as they are utilized by the public. 

b) Ms. Kautzmann also asked that waterline assessments be removed from her 
properties #1563A and #1563B. However these properties are considered buildable 
by the Building Inspector's Office. Note - water and sewer can be placed on 



Board of City Commissioners 
Special Assessments Related to Mandan Avenue & Division Street East 
September 6, 2013 
Page 3of3 

private property and be connected to city services if the property is within city 
limits. These properties are within city limits thereby receiving a benefit from this 
improvement. 

c) Ms. Kautzmann asked that the total construction cost of the project be assessed 
throughout the district using total cost vs total parcels of land, her interpretation of 
NDCC 40-23-07, "shall assess against each of such lots and parcels of land such 
sum, not exceeding the benefits, as is necessary to pay its just proportion of the 
total cost of such work, or of the part thereof which is to be paid by special 
assessment". Note - the total cost was spread to properties within the district based 
on the benefits received from the construction to various areas. Example, the 
Dennison's Industrial Park did not receive any benefit from the waterline as they 
are fed from a major transmission line within the subdivision. To spread specials 
to this area by total sum would have been wrong since no benefit was received 
from the waterline. 

d) Ms. Holter claimed that her prope1iy should not have been in the storm sewer basin 
since the waters do not run onto that basin. She was presented with a topography 
map indicating that the waters do indeed run into the newly constructed storm 
basin. She still refutes that fact. 

In summary we have reviewed the logic behind the original method used to spread the 
costs and found it to be reasonable. The special assessments for this project have been 
spread in a manner consistent with what was presented at the time the project was 
proposed and costs are within the range as originally proposed. 

SID # 148 will be before the Board of City Commissioners for final action on September 
17, 2013. It is imperative to have final approval of this project and get the assessments 
on the tax roll. 

The district was very complex and it is a lot to digest, so we ask that if you have 
questions please contact the Engineering office and speak with Phyllis or Kim. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To appoint members to the Mandan Youth Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  We have five openings on the Youth Commission 

and have received 5 applications. Notice was placed in the Mandan News, school 

announcements and on the marquee. 

 

Recommended appointments are as follows: 

(*) = new appointments 

Mandan Middle School 

 Anderson, Morgan * 

 Hammer, Brenna * 

 Just, Madison * 

Mandan High School 

 Beck, Casey 

 Kaysee Fry 

 Garman, Cole 

 Quintus, McKenna * 

At-Large 

 Wingenbach, Lauren * 

 Doll, Ashley 

 Leingang, Connor 

 

Liaisons 

o City Commissioner, Dot Frank or designee(s) 

o City Administrator, Jim Neubauer 

o City Business Development & Communications Director, Ellen Huber 

o Assistant Superintendent, Jeff Lind or designee (s) 

o Middle School Principal, Ryan Leingang or designee (s) Jackie Williamson 

o Morton County Extension Service, Karla Meikel or designee(s) 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 23, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Appointments to Mandan Youth Commission 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject: Appointments to Mandan Youth Commission 

Page 2 of 2 

 

o Mandan Parks & Recreation, Cole Higlin or designee(s) 

o Mandan Tomorrow, Pam Mack or designee(s) 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommendations are to appoint McKenna Quintus, Morgan 

Anderson, Brenna Hammer, Madison Just and Laura Wingenbach to the Mandan Youth 

Commission. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I recommend appointing McKenna Quintus, Morgan 

Anderson, Brenna Hammer, Madison Just and Laura Wingenbach to the Mandan Youth 

Commission. 

 



Bismarck andan 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Jim Neubauer, Mandan City Administrator 

P.O. Box 5503 • 221 North 5th Street 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58506 

Telephone 701 355 1840 · 
TDD Dial 711 

Fax 701 222 6450 
Email cobplan@nd.gov 

Web www.bismarck.org 

I New Business No. 2 

FROM: Ben Ehreth, Bismarck-Mandan Metropolitan Planning Organization D ~ 
DATE: September 24, 2013 

SUBJECT: Bismarck-Mandan MPO 2015-2040 Long Range Transportation Plan 

The Bismarck-Mandan Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) has recently initiated the 
update of the area Long Range Transportation Plan. The Bismarck-Mandan MPO respectfully 
requests to be placed on the October 1, 2013 City of Mandan Commission Agenda to discuss the 
update of the 2015-2040 Long Range Transportation Plan and to introduce HDR Inc. the 
consultant assisting with the update of the document. This item is for informational purposes 
only and no formal action is requested at this time. The Long Range Transportation Plan is a 
document updated once every five years and seeks to identify and prioritize existing and future 
multi-modal transportation needs in Bismarck, Lincoln, Mandan and portions of Burleigh and 
Morton counties. Transportation projects seeking the use of federal transportation funds must be 
identified within the Long Range Transportation Plan. Anticipated completion of the document 
is December 2014. 

Bismarck Burleigh County • Mandan • Morton County , Lincoln 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Planning & Zoning Commission received three letters of interest for the open At 

Large position. This position became vacant with the resignation of Loren Wetch. The 

Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously to appoint Karl Liepitz to the 

Commission.   

 

ATTACHMENTS: Letter of Interest   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to appoint Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 27, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth 

SUBJECT: Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

  

New Business No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Planning & Zoning Commission received three letters of interest for the open at 

Large position. This position became vacant with the resignation of Loren Wetch. The 

three applicants were Karl A. Liepitz, John Schultz, and Lori Spina Hoherz. All three 

applicants attended the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and  spoke on their 

own behalf. After some discussion, The Planning & Zoning Commission voted 

unanimously to appoint Karl Liepitz to the Commission. Reasons for recommending Karl 

included the nature of his work experience and the content of his letter of interest.    

 

ATTACHMENTS: Three Letters of Interest   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney 

for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to appoint Karl Liepitz to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 27, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth 

SUBJECT: Consider appointment of Karl Liepitz to the 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

  

New Business No. 3 

Revised 9-30-2013 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Appointment of Karl Liepitz to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To approve a variance to change the property’s building side setback 

line from 5’ to 3’ from property line at 311 10
th

 Avenue NE. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Norman Schafer, property owner.  The 

request is to allow a variance to change the property’s building setback line from 5’ to 3’.  This 

would allow him to build a wider garage with a double door. The planning and zoning 

commission approved the variance on September 23, 2013 with the following vote: Fleischer-

aye, Hilfer-aye,Knoll-nay, Van Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Laber-nay, Mehlhoff-aye, Robinson-

aye. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Variance Request Application 

2. Vicinity Map 

3. Pictures of Property from 2011 

  

FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The planning and zoning commission recommends approval.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to approve a variance for the E 70’ of Lots 1 & 2, Block 18, 

Helmsworth McLean Addition to change the property’s building side setback from 5’ to 3’ from 

property line. 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE:   October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 24, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval a variance request by 

Norman J. Shafer 

 

  

New Business No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

 

North 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To approve a variance to change the property’s building side setback 

line from 5’ to 3’ from property line at 311 10
th

 Avenue NE. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Request from Norman Schafer, property owner.  The 

request is to allow a variance to change the property’s building setback line from 5’ to 3’.  This 

would allow him to build a wider garage with a double door. The planning and zoning 

commission debated if the request met the requirements of application for a variance. The 

planning and zoning commission approved the variance on September 23, 2013 with the 

following vote: Fleischer-aye, Hilfer-aye,Knoll-nay, Van Beek-nay, Leingang-aye, Laber-nay, 

Mehlhoff-aye, Robinson-aye. Vote passed by a vote of 5-3.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Variance Request Application 

2. Vicinity Map 

3. Pictures of Property from 2011 

  

FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The planning and zoning commission recommends approval because 

the request meets the requirements for a variance.     

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to approve a variance for the E 70’ of Lots 1 & 2, Block 18, 

Helmsworth McLean Addition to change the property’s building side setback from 5’ to 3’ from 

property line. 

 

 

MEETING DATE:   October 1, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: September 24, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering/Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval a variance request by 

Norman J. Shafer 

 

  

New Business No. 4 

Revised 9-30-2013   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

North 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  October 1, 2013 

Subject:  Consider for approval a variance request by Norman J. Shafer  

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTIONS #1 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

MEETING DATE: 
PREPARATION DATE: 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: 

October 1, 2013 
September 25, 2013 
Finance 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: 
PRESENTER: 
SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE 

Greg Welch 
Greg Welch 
Resolution authorizing filing of application with 
the North Dakota Department of Health for a 
Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 

To consider a Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota 
Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 

BACKGROUND 
With Board of City Commission approval, the Meter Reading Department began 
replacing old Water Meters/MXUs in 2002. Since then, approximately 2,750 old 
Water Meters/MXUs have been replaced by the Department. However, due to 
the lack of consistency and efficiency, the City is now in the process of 
establishing a water meter/reading replacement strategy for its existing water 
meter/reading program. The City currently has approximately 6,500 water meters 
ranging in size from 5/8" to 6" in diameter. The City uses its water meter readings 
to bill its customers for water and sewer usage on a monthly basis. 

On July 18, 2013, Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services completed 
a review evaluating the water meter/reading inventory to provide a recommended 
water meter/reading upgrade and possible replacement strategy. The purpose of 
the study was to bring consistency and efficiency to the City's water meter 
reading and billing system by identifying incompatible radio read technology and 
outdated water meters. A practical approach includes integrating all metered 
users into a single, consistent data collection system by replacing old water 
meter/reading assemblies with new, compatible components and incorporating 
the data into the current or new billing software. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 
Subject: Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota 
Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 
Pa e 2 of 3 

On August 20, 2013, Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services 
presented the recommendations from the Technical Memorandum to Board of 
City Commissioners. The Board approved the recommendations and requested 
to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Advanced Engineering and 
Environmental Services on September 3, 2013. 

The Project will include the upgrade of existing meter assemblies to replace 
outdated meters and to allow a drive-by reading system to be implemented with 
a contingency for a future fixed network system. 

On September 3, 2013, the Board of City Commissioners approved to enter into 
an Agreement with Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services for 
engineering services for the Water Meter Improvements Project. 

Construction will begin during the winter of 2013 and will be completed during 
the fall of 2014. 

To finance the Project, the City will apply for a Loan from the State Revolving 
Fund Program (SRF) through the North Dakota Public Finance Authority. The 
Loan will be for a period of 20 years at an interest rate of 2.5%, which includes a 
0.5% administrative fee. The Loan will be repaid from user fees. The City is only 
obligated for the Loan draw requests. 

ATTACHMENTS 
• North Dakota Public Finance Authority's summary of the State Revolving 

Fund Program. 
• North Dakota Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program (DWSRF) 

Loan Application Package cover page and list of Contents and 
Instructions. 

• Budget Sheet 
• Resolution 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total SRF Loan request and Project cost estimate = $2,400,000 

• Construction = $2,003,000 
• Engineering= $187,000 
• Administration= $10,000 
• Contingency= $200,000 
• Total= $2,400,000 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2013 
Subject: Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota 
Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 
Pa e 3 of 3 

The City included this Project in the 2013/2014 Budgets and adjusted the Water 
and Sewer Base Rate to service the debt on the Loan. 

STAFF IMPACT 
None 

LEGAL REVIEW 
The Resolution is in accordance with the requirements of the North Dakota 
Department of Health and the North Dakota Public Finance Authority. 

RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North Dakota 
Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the Resolution authorizing filing of application with the North 
Dakota Department of Health for a Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Act. 



North Dakota Public Finance Authority: State Revolving Fund Program Page 1of1 

North Dakota 

»CAPITAL FINANCING 

»STATE REVOLVING FUND 

»SCHOOL FINANCING 

» INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

»OFFICIAL STATEMENTS 

» FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

»FEEDBACK 

»LINKS 

»HOME 

1200 Memorial Highway 

PO Box 5509 

Bismarck, ND 58506-5509 

701.328.7100: phone 

800.526.3509 : toll-free 

701.328.7130: fax 

ndpfa@nd.gov 

Search: 

http://www.nd.gov/pfa/srf.html 

t'"'l(j. gov ()fficial Portal for 
N0ttl1 Dnkota State Government 

State Revolving Fund Program 

The State Revolving Fund Program (SRF) was established in 1990 to enable North Dakota 

to receive federal capitalization grants as authorized under the Clean Water Act. In 1998, 

the SRF was amended to enable the State to receive capitalization grants as authorize 

under the Safe Drinking Water Act. The SRF grants, received from the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency, are to be used to make below-market interest rate loans 

to political subdivisions for the purpose of financing authorized projects, to establish 

reserve funds, and for other purposes allowed under the Clean Water and Safe Drinking 

Water Acts. Authorized projects under the SRF include wastewater treatment facilities, non

point source pollution control projects, and public water systems. The North Dakota 

Department of Health and the Authority jointly administer the SRF. 

The interest rates on SRF loans are set by the Department of Health in consultation with 

the Authority. The interest rates are fixed for a term up to 20 years. Currently, the interest 

rate for all SRF loans is 2.5%, which includes a .5% administrative fee. 

The SRF Program has been assigned a rating of "AAA" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 

Loan Applications 

»Clean Water State Revolving Fund (340kb rtf) 

»Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (374kb rtf) 

Bond Counsel 

»Bond Counsel (19kb pdf) 

@ @ DISCLAIMER • PRIVACY POLICY 

Copyright© 2012 ·North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

9/23/2013 



NORTH DAKOTA DRINKING WATER 
STATE REVOLVING FUND PROGRAM 

(DWSRF) 

Loan Application Package 

North Dakota Department of Health 
Division of Municipal Facilities 

and 

North Dakota Public Finance Authority 

Bismarck, North Dakota 



CONTENTS AND INSTRUCTIONS 

CONTENTS OF APPLICATION PACKAGE 

I. SRF Program Application 
2. Budget Sheet 
3. Request for Supplemental Information 
4. Debarment and Suspension Certification 
5. Preaward Compliance Review Report 
6. Resolution of Governing Body 

APPLICATION SUBMISSION 

Complete items 1-6 and submit to: 

Notih Dakota Depatiment of Health 
Division of Municipal Facilities 
918 East Divide A venue, Third Floor 
Bismarck, ND 58501-1947 

APPLICATION PROCESS 

I. Project must be on the Department of Health's Intended Use Plan (IUP) 
2. Application reviewed by ND Public Finance Authority (PF A) 
3. Application reviewed by PF A's Advisory Committee 
4. Application reviewed by the ND Industrial Commission 
5. Political subdivision's bond counsel prepares bond documents 
6. Bond documents are filed with the PF A 
7. Political subdivision may submit loan draw requests to the Depatiment of Health 

IMPORTANT REMINDERS 

• The political subdivision is responsible for selecting and retaining bond counsel. 
• SRF loans are Federal Funds and subject to specific auditing procedures. Please 

aleti your auditor. 
• Revenue bonds require 120% coverage and a reserve fund. 
• Audit repotis or financial statements must be filed annually with the PF A. 

QUESTIONS 

Completing pages 1 - 7 of the application: 
ND Public Finance Authority 
Phone: 1.800.526.3509 or 701.328.7100 
Fax: 701.328.7130 
Email: fil!Rfa@state.nd.us 
Website: www.nd.gov/pfa 

Project Approval & IUP 
ND Department of Health 
Phone: 701.328.5211 
Fax: 701.328.5200 
Email: dbruschw@nd.gov 
Website: www.ndhealth.gov/MF/ 



BUDGET SHEET 

COST CLASSIFICATION SRF CDBG LOCAL OTHER TOTAL 
1. Administrative expenses $10,000 $10,000 

2. Land, structures, rights-of-way --- ---
3. Engineering basic fees $138,500 $138,500 

4. Other engineering fees $8,500 $8,500 

5. Project inspection fees $40,000 $40,000 

6. Land development --- ---
7. Relocation expenses --- ---
8. Construction and project improvement $2,003,000 $2,003,000 

9. Equipment --- ---
10. Capitalized interest --- ---
11. Other (describe) --- ---
12. Miscellaneous --- ---
13. SUBTOTAL $2,200,000 $2,200,000 

14. Contingencies $200,000 $200,000 

15. TOTAL $2,400,000 $2,400,000 

16. SRF Funds . ............................... $2,400,000 

17. CDBG Funds ··························································· 
18. LOCAL Funds ························································································· 
19. OTHER Funds ····················································································································· 
20. TOTAL All Funds ·············································································································································· $2,400,000 



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FILING OF APPLICATION WITH THE NORTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR A LOAN UNDER THE SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Safe Drinking Water Act, the United States of America has 
authorized the making of Loans to authorized applicants to aid in the construction of specific 
public projects: 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North 
Dakota: 

1. That Arlan Van Beek, President, be and is hereby authorized to execute and file an application 
on behalf of the City of Mandan with the North Dakota Department of Health for a Loan to aid 
in the construction of the Water Meter Replacement and Anto Read System Improvements 
Project. 

2. That Jim Neubauer, City Administrator, be and is hereby authorized and directed to furnish 
such information as the North Dakota Department of Health may reasonably request in 
connection with the application which is herein authorized to be filed, to sign all necessary 
documents, and, on behalf of city, to accept Loan offer and receive payment of Loan funds. 

This resolution shall become effective upon the date of its adoption. 

Dated and adopted this 1'' day of October, 2013. 

Arlan Van Beek, President of the Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING OFFICER 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting as City Administrator of the City of Mandan does 
hereby certify: That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution, 
authorizing the filing of application with the North Dakota Department of Health, as regularly 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of City Commissioners duly held on the 1st 

day of October, 2013; and further that such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of 
proceedings and records in my office. 

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand this ___ day of October, 2013. 

Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1169 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF ORDINANCE 

1088 OF THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota shall be excluded from R7 (Single-Family Residential), R3.2 (Two-Family 

Residential) and RM (Multi-Family Residential) and shall be included in the RM (Multi-Family 

Residential) zoning namely, 

 

Eagle Ridge 1
st
 Addition in Section 16, Township 139N, Range 81W in the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota  

  

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted.  The city administrator is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance 

with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

            

City Administrator 

 

 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013   

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:                         October 15, 2013  

Publication Date:     __     

Recording Date:                              __ 
 
 
 

Res. & Ord. No. 2 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1170 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF ORDINANCE 

1088 OF THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota shall be excluded from CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with restrictions of no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial parking lot/garage, off-

premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or any of the 

wholesale group) and shall be included in the CC (Heavy Commercial removing the restrictions) 

zoning namely, 

 

Lots 1 & 2, Block 1, Sylvester’s 3
rd

 Addition in Section 31, Township 139N, Range 80W, City 

of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota  

  

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted.  The city administrator is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance 

with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

            

City Administrator 

 

 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013   

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:                         October 15, 2013  

Publication Date:     __     

Recording Date:                              __ 
 

Res. & Ord. No. 3 



 
 
 

 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 1171 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE MANDAN 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND ZONING 

MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Municipal Code is amended 

to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota shall be excluded from the CC Restricted (Heavy Commercial with restrictions of 

no railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial parking lot/garage, 

off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage building/warehouse or any of 

the wholesale group) zoning and shall be included in the CC (Heavy Commercial removing the 

restrictions) namely, 

 

Lots 1-3 and 6, Block 1, Midway 14
th

 Addition in Section 31, Township 139N, 

Range 81W in the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota 

 

and as so amended said section is hereby reenacted. The city administrator is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance 

with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:   August 26, 2013___ 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013___   

Second Consideration 

and Final Reading:               October 15, 2013__   

Publication Date:     ____   

Recording Date:                              ____   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Res. & Ord. No. 4 



 

 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1158 

 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Section 21-03-10(1)(a) of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  

 Relating to Automobile Parking 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 21-03-10(1)(a) of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and 

re-enacted to read as follows: 

 

Section 21-03-10.    Automobile Parking.  

 

1. Off-Street Parking.  Except as provided in this section, no 

application for a building permit or certificate of occupancy in any zone 

shall be approved unless there is included with the plan for such a 

building, improvement or use, a plot  plan showing the required open 

space designated as being reserved for off-street parking purposes to be 

provided in connection with such a building, improvement or use in 

accordance with this section; and no certificate of occupancy shall be 

issued unless the required facilities have been provided in accordance with 

those shown on the attached plan.   Such off-street parking shall be 

provided on the bases of the following minimum requirements: 

a. Dwellings, including single-family, two-family and multi-family 

dwelling— one two off-street parking spaces for each dwelling 

unit; except that for an efficiency apartment of less than 400 

square feet, only one off-street parking space shall be required if 

the parking space is exterior. 

b. 50% of the required minimum parking spaces must be exterior 

parking. 

 

By:___________________________________ 

Attest:       President, Board of City Commissioners  

 

___________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:        October 1, 2013  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    ________________ 

Publication Date:          

Res. & Ord. No. 5 



 

RESOLUTION 
 

 

 

Be it resolved by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, North Dakota, 

pursuant to § 12-02-06, of the Mandan Municipal Code, that the license fees for the sale of 

alcoholic beverages shall be as follows: 

 

 

ALCOHOL LICENSE FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Annual Renewal 

License          Fee 

Class A (General Retail-On & Off sale Beer & Liquor)  $3,100 

Class B (Club-On & Off sale Beer & Liquor)    $2,800 

Special B (Publicly Owned or Operated Facilities-On Sale Beer)  $100 

Special B (Publicly Owned Facilities-On sale Beer & Liquor)   $100 

Class C (Motel & Hotel-On & Off sale Beer & Liquor)   $2,900 

Class D (Exclusive Off sale Beer & Liquor)     $3,100 

Class D-1 (Exclusive Off sale Beer & Wine)     $600 

Class E (Restaurant-On sale Beer & Liquor)     $2,500 

Class F  (Restaurant-On sale Beer & Wine)     $1,150 

Class G (Commercial passenger vessels)     $1,150 

Class WB (Wine or Brewery)       $600 

Class MP (Member Producer)       $600 

Class DY (Distilled Spirits)       $600 

 

Issuance 

License          Fee 

Class A (General Retail-On & Off sale Beer & Liquor)  $60,000 

Class D (Exclusive Off sale Beer & Liquor)     $80,000 

Class D-1 (Exclusive Off sale Beer & Wine)     $35,000 

 

 

 

Dated this 1st
 
day of October, 2013. 

 

________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_______________ 

City Administrator 

Res. & Ord. No. 6 



 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1168 

 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Portions of Section 12-02-04 and Section 12-02-06 of the  

Mandan Code of Ordinances 

 Relating to Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 

 

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

 

Section 12-02-04 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and re-

enacted to read as follows: 

 

Section 12-02-04.   Classification of alcoholic beverage licenses –Numbers 

restricted The City may issue an unlimited number of  alcoholic beverage licenses of any 

class. 

There shall be nine classes of alcoholic beverage licenses, namely: 

1. Class A.  General retail (on- and off-premises) license; requires a minimum 

seating capacity of thirty (30) persons). 

 

and 

 

 The number of Class A licenses shall be restricted to 17 in  number, Class D 

licenses to 3 in number, and Class D-1 licenses to 7 in number until such time as the 

number of “living units” (as determined by the office of building inspection) increases by 

500 living units in excess of the number of living units within the City of Mandan as of 

June 30, 2012.   At least 30 days before July 1
st
 of every year the office of building 

inspection shall certify to the City Auditor the number of living units within the City as of 

the date of certification. 

 This section shall not be construed to require the city to issue licenses equal to the 

number allowed hereunder  for the sale of alcoholic beverages and the board in its 

discretion, should it deem that a significant number of such licenses have been issued, 

may refuse to issue any license even though authorized under this section. 

 

Section 12-02-06.  License and issuance fee. 

 The license fees shall be payable in advance at the time of the filing of the 

application.  Should a license be granted for an unexpired portion of the term of the 

license, said fees shall be prorated on the basis of the number of months remaining in 

such term, determined as of the first day of the month in which such license is issued.  No 

license issued pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be assignable or transferable 

and the failure to pay any license fee on or before the date when it is due shall 

automatically cancel the license. 

 

 Res. & Ord. No. 7 
Added 9-30-2013 

  



 The License and issuance fees shall be as established from time to time by 

resolution of the Board of City Commissioners. 

 Whenever the board increases the number of licenses available in any class, or 

When a license is not renewed, or is revoked, a one-time only issuance fee, in an amount 

determined by the board in its discretion by resolution shall be paid by any new licensee.  

The issuance fee shall be in addition to the annual license fee.  In lieu of setting an 

issuance fee the board may utilize a competitive sealed bidding process for the award of 

these licenses, may establish a minimum bid or substitute any other procedure for the 

issuance of a license as determined by the board. 

 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

 

First Consideration:   October 1, 2013  

Second Consideration  

    and Final Passage:  ________________ 

Publication Date:      


	Agenda October 1, 2013 
	Minutes - September 17, 2013 - Regular meeting
	Minutes - September 23, 2013 - Special meeting
	Public Hearing No. 1 North Annexation Public Hearing
	Public Hearing No. 2 Eagle Ridge 1st Addition zc
	Public Hearing No. 3 Sylvesters Industrial Park 3rd Addition zc
	Public Hearing No. 4 Midway 14th Addition zc
	Games of Chance - Bismarck Single File at Mandan Eagles Club
	Games of Chance - Ten Spot Scratch at Ten Spot Lanes
	Traffic Safety Grant
	Change order Street Imp. Project 2013-19 D185
	Administrative Guidelines for City Pay Policies
	National Disability Employment Awareness Month Proclamation
	Confirm. of specials Oct. 1, 2013
	Confirm. of specials Oct. 1, 2013 - attachment No. 1
	Confirm. of specials Oct. 1, 2013 - attachment No. 2
	Mandan Youth Commission Appointments
	MPO Long Range Transportation Plan
	Appoint Planning & Zoning Commissioner
	Variance Helmsworth Mclean
	Safe Drinking Water Act Loan Res.
	Ord. 1169 only
	Ord. 1170 only
	Ord. 1171 only
	Ord. 1158 Amend and Re-enact Auto Parking
	Alcohol License Fees Res.

